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Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen
professional services giving
outstanding advice and
transactional support to
enable clients to protect,
enhance and realise the value
of their assets, businesses
and investments throughout
the economic cycle.



Strategic report

Financial highlights

REVENUE

£110.0m

(+31%)
(2021 £83 8m)

NET CASH

L4.7m

(2021: £3.0m)
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Strategic report

At a glance

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Begbies Traynor Group plc is a leading business recovery,
financial advisory and property services consultancy.

Our services

Corporate and
personal insolvency

We handle the largest number of
corporate appeintments in the UK,
principally serving the mid-market

and smaller companies.

Financial advisory

Debt advisory, due diligence and
transactional support, accelerated
corporate finance, pensions
advisory, business and financial
restructuring, forensic accounting

and investigations, finance broking,

Transactional services

Sale of property, machinery and
other business assets through
physical and online auctions,
business sales agency,
commercial property agency.

Corporate finance

Buy and sell side support
on corporate transactions.

Valuations

Valuation of property,
businesses, machinery
and business assets.

Property consultancy,
planning and
management

Building consultancy, lease
advisory, commercial property
management, specialist insurance
and vacant property risk
management, transport
planning and design.

02 Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2022
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Strategic report Corporate governance

Why invest?

Strong track record of cash-generative,
profitable growth with a well-established
progressive dividend policy

¢« KPIs on page 10

Financial statements

Diverse income streams provide multiple
sources of growth across the economic
cycle in fragmented markets

« Business model on page 6

AlM listed since 2004:

+ highly experienced board and senior
management team

+ long-established corporate structure
with separation of equity,
management and fee earners

Market-leading business recovery
practice taking the largest number

of corporate insolvency appointments
in the UK, with a focus on mid-market
and smaller companies

Strongly positioned in counter-cyclical
activities, representing 70% of
total revenue

+ Business model on page 6

Strong referral network across the group
leading to high levels of repeat business

Growth strategy of organic investment
and value-accretive acquisitions across
our service lines

+ Strategy onpage 8

Annual report and accounts 2022 Begbies Traynor Group ple 03



Strategic report Corporate governance

Chairman’s
statement

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

Introduction

I am pleased to deliver my annual report to shareholders on a further
successful vear for the group, with financial performance comfortably
ahead of originat market expectations due to acquisitions and
improved tradmg. These results reflect the marerial increase in our
scale and service offerings and a continuation of the strong financial
track record we have bullt over recent years, resulting from our
organic and acquisitive growth strategy.

Since 2018 we have increased revenue from £52.4m to £110.0m,
aperating margins from 11.6% to 16.9%, adjusted profit before rax
from £5.6mto £17.8m and adjusted earnings per share from 4 0p
to 9.1p. respectively, from a combination of acquisitions and
arganic growth. Last year was no exception, as all areas of the
group have delivered strong growth. Over the same period,

we have also increased dividends by 10% CAGR and moved

from net debt to net cash.

Qur business recavery activities achieved significant growth,
following on from the acquisitions of CVR Global and David Rubin
& Partners late in the previous financial year. In addition, organic
activity increased over the course of the financial year as the
Government's pandemic support measures were gradually
removed. UK insclvency numbers have now returned 1o
pre-pandemic levels and we have increased our market share
(by volume)

Our advisory services have been broadened and enhanced
following the acquisition of the finance broker MAF Finance Group
at the start of the financial year. The addition of finance broking
complements our advisory and transactional services, Increasing
the range of services and advice we can provide to our clients

Cur property services division reported growth in revenue and
operating margins, resulting from recent acquisitions, our
expanding valuation and consulting services, and the recovery in
activity levels compared to the lockdown-impacted comparative
period. We are continuing to invest in and develop this service line
with two acguisitions completed in the financial year, and one
following the year end.

Financial statements

The group has continued to generate substantial free cash flow,
ending the year with a net cash balance of £4.7m (2021: £3.0m).
This is after £8 2m of acquisition and deferred consideration
payments and paying dividends of £4.6m. Our strong financial
position enables us to propose a 17% ncrease in the total
dradend for the year, representing our fifth consecutive year
of dividend growth

Cverall, the group remains in a strong position at the start of our
new financial year. Our scale, capabilities and breadth of expertise
provide us with the ahility to continue to assist our clients as they
faca the challenges of the forthcoming year.

Results

Group revenue n the year increased by 31% 1o £110.0m
(2021: £83.8my), 7% of which was organic Adjusted’ profit
before tax? increased by 55% to £178m (2021 £11 5m).
Statutory profit before tax was £4.0m (2027 £1.9m).

Adjusted basic earnings per share? increased by 32% w9 1p
(2021: 6.9p). Basic loss per share was 0.3p {2021, earnings of 0 1p),
reflecting a one-off non-cash deferred tax charge

As at 30 April 2022 the group had net cash of £4.7m (2021 £3.0m).

Dividend

The board 1s pleased to recommend (subject to sharehalder
approval at the company’'s annual general meeting scheduled
for 22 September 2022) a 17% increase in the total dividend for
the year to 3.5p {2021. 3.0p), representing our fifth consecutive
year of dividend growth, This comprises the interim dividend
already paid of 1.1p (2021. 1.0p) and a proposed final dividend
of 2 4p{2021: 2.0p).

This reflects the board's confidence in the group’s financial
positon and prospects, whilst retaining capacity for our continued
organic and acquisitive growth strategy. We remain committed to
our long-term progressive dividend policy, which takes account

of the group's earnings growth, investment plans and cash
requirements, together with the market outlock,

The final dividend will be paid on 3 November 2022 to
shareholders on the register on 7 October 2022, with
an ex-dividend date of 6 October 2022

The ooard uses adjsted performance measures to provide mear nafulirfremator o1 the 2oeradirg pe-formance of the business Therems exchuded from cu- agjusted resalts

are th ose whicn ar s die to acquisitons inacgordance with 1535 3 Treyare notintluenced by the day-to-day operat ans of the groap

2 erofitbefore tax ££ 0m 12020, £1 %) olus Transacton costs £8 Im (2027 £6 5myanc arrart saban of intangible assets ansing w2 quisiions £5 5m (2021 £3 1)

"

segieconciliatior i note 10
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Strategic report Corporate governance

Strategy

We believe that the execution of our strategy will continue

to enhance shareholder value through the delivery of strong,
sustainable financial performance.

Organic growth will be targeted through:

* retention and development of our existing partners
and employees,

* recruitment of new talent,

¢ enhanced cross-selling of cur service Iines and expertise
tQ our wider client base; and

¢ investment in technology and pracesses to enhance working
practices and improve the service to our clients.

Cur acquisition strategy is to target value-accrative acquisitions
in any of the following market segments:

¢ insolvency to Increase markat share;

s property services to enhance expertise or geographical
coverage; and

s complementary professicnal services businesses to continue
the development of the group and its service offering

People

Our ongoing success s reliant on the quality of advice and service
dehvered to our chents by cur people. { would like to thank all of
our colieagues far their contribution over the course of the last
financial year Following the successful acguisitions, we are
pleased with the way our teams are working together and our
new colleagues have integrated into our culture, We have
continued to support hybrid working arrangements during

the year, as working patterns begin to normalise following

the pandemic.

Sustainability

The board 15 committed to developing the businessin a
sustainable way for the benefit of all our stakeholders. We look to
minimise our iImpact on the environment; have a positive impact
for cur people and the communities we serve; and operate with a
culture of strong governance and responsible behaviour.

During the year under review we have made progressin a number
of areas including the appointment of a new People Director to
iead our human capital initiatives and the appointment of external

Financial statements

consuftants to advise the board on material areas of focus for
sustanability We also inttiated a salary sacnfice car scheme 1o
enable employees to purchase a low emission vehicte in 3 tax
efficient manner and encourage the transition of our employees to
more environmentally friendly vehicles. Further infermation on our
sustainability policies and progress is detalled on pages 18 to 21,

Outlook

We have started our new financial year in a strong position and are
confident of delivering aur plans for further growth At this early
stage of the year, we anticipate result being towards the top end of
current market expectations, with cost inflation more than offset
by revenue growth,

The development af the group in recent years, and the extensive
expertise we have built across our natioral office netwark, leaves
us well positioned to respond to the challenging economic backdrop.

The insolvency market {by volume} has returned te pre-pandemic
activity levels and is expected to increase further in the current
year and beyond, Althcugh to date this increase has been through
liquidations {typically smaller companies) rather than administrations
{typically larger and more comglex Instructions), we anticipate
administrations will also increase to normal levels over the course of
the new financial year.

Our advisory team has an encouraging pipeline of organic growth
and acquisition opportunities, giving confidence on further
development being achieved in the new financial year.

In the property division, we anticipate further progress as we
continue to develop our broad range of services through organic
growth and acquisitions, having completed the purchase of
Budworth Hardcastle in June 2022,

Our healthy balance sheet and cash generaton underpin our
capacity to progress our pipeline of acquisitions and deliver
organic growth imtiatives, thereby continuing our track record of
growth We will provide an update on trading at the annual gereral
meetmng in September 2022

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman
18 July 2022
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Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements

Business model

Our business is providing advice and transactional support to clients to protect, enhance and
realise the value of their assets, businesses and investments throughout the economic cycle.

We do this with our team of fee earners operating within the local business community
from offices across the UK.

Our market-leading business recovery practice, which takes the largest number of corporate
insolvency appointments in the UK, and our growing complementary service lines enable
us to offer wide-ranging solutions for our clients.

Our key strengths Our activities

People 10%

« Highly experienced and
gualified professionals

+ Detailed market knowledge 200/0 700/0

+ Entrepreneurial approach

Clients and
relationships

» Diverse client base Anumber of the group's activities are influenced by the general economic

« £nduring relationships envircnment and are likely to perform better in differing economic climates.

* Trusted brand and reputation Counter-cyclical activities (70%)

« Corporate and personal insolvency e Valuation and sale of distressed

Know-how :
‘ , . . as roperty, machiner
. . + Business and financial restructuring sets (proy e, ¥ Y
« Creative, problem-soiving and other business assets)
i » Debt advisor L

expertise y » Specialistinsurance and vacant
¢ Established business * Accelerated corporate finance property risk management

practices

Cyclical activities (20%)

» Specialist services with ‘
e Corporate finance

barriers to entry Asset sales

Business sales

¢ Finance broking
Financial » Valuation of commercial properties « Transpert planning and design

o Strong financial position « Commercial property agency
¢+ Resilient financial P
performance across the Uncorrelated activities (10%)

economic cycle ¢ Due diligence and ¢ Property auctions

transaction support ‘
o Growing operating margins PP « Building consultancy

e Forensic accounting

) T « Commerdial property management
and investigations property &

i . » Lease advisory
* Pensions advisory

06 Beghies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2022



Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements

Our culture and values How we create value for our stakeholders

Values People

+ Trusted advisor to our clients Provide an environment in which our people:

 ACt with ntegrity « arevalued and enjoy working for the group

+ Take pride in our advice and » can develcop their talents and fulfil their potential
solutions provided to clients « share in corporate success through reward packages

including share incentive schemes

Governance

+ Board oversight Clients

« Highly experienced Optimise value for chients through providing:
leadership team in « high quality service

executive and senior

. » competitive and cost-effactive charging structure
rnanagement positions

» innovative and entrepreneurial advice and solutions
Risk management

« Established business and Shareholders

risk management processes Sustainable increase in shareholder value through:
 Dedicated compliance * growing earnings per share

functions + paying dividends
* Business diversification « delivering share price appreciation

to reduce exposure to
one activity or changes
in the business cycle

Annual report and accounts 2022 Beghies Traynor Group plc o7



Strategic report

Strategy and objectives

Corporate governance

Delivering value through growth.

Financial statements

Our strategy

The board believes the execution of this strategy will enhance shareholder value through
the delivery of strong, sustainable financial performance.

Organic growth will be targeted through:

* retention and deveiopment of our existing partners

and employees;

* recrurtment of new talent;

* enhanced cross-selling of our service lines and expertise

to our wider client base; and

e investment in technology and processes to enhance working

practices and {mprove the service to our chents.

COur acquisition strategy is to rarget value-accretive
acquisitiens in any of the following market segments;

insolvency to increase market share;

property services to enhance expertise or geographical

coverage,; and

complementary professional services businesses
to continue the development of the group and its

service offering

Our vision

To be leaders in our chosen professional services giving outstanding advice and
transactional support to enable clients to protect, enhance and realise the value
of their assets, businesses and investments throughout the economic cycle.

1

Increase scale
and quality
Increase the scale and
quality of our businesses
both organically and
by acquisition

08 Begbies Traynor Group pic Annual report and accounts 2022

Our strategic objectives

2

Shareholder
value
Deliver sustainable
profitable growth,
enabling increased
shareholder value

3

Effective capital
structure
Maintain our strong
finanaiat position enabling
the investment in and
development of the group
and our people

A

Strong corporate
governance
Continue to ensure high
standards of corporate
governance and
responsibility



Strategic report Corporate governance

Acquiring for growth

Financial statements

The group has a well-defined process for the identification, valuation, acquisition

and integration of target businesses.

Our acquisition process

Valuation and
pricing strategy

Target
identification

The group mamtains a
pipeline of acquisition
opporunties through both
internally managed search
exercises and responding
1o external sales processes.

The group has a standard
process for assessing the
value of a target business.

We require an appropriate
ONgoing commitment 1o
the business from vendors
We target value-accretive
acquisitions in any of the
following market segments:

Opportunities that do not
meet the pricing, valuation

3 4

Effective
transaction process

Integration and
value delivery

The group has an
established legal and
financial due diligence
process which combines
n-house and external
operational and
commercial due diligence
and integravon planning.

There i1s a clear post-
acquisition integration
strategy and plan to
ensure shareholder
value s defivered.

The integraticn model
is based on:

e clear communication
This enables the group to

[

insolvency to increase
market share:

and commercial parameters
are guickly rejected.

complete transactions in
an effective, cost-efficient
and timely manner.

o0 key stakeholders;

integration of
support services;

® property services o
enhance expertise
or geographical coverage;
and

* complementary
orofessional services
businesses to continue the
development of the group
and &s service offering,

Revenue growth since 2018

1207 206 110.0

100
37.0

80 —

60 4 534

Revenue (£m}

40

20 H

2018 Acquired Organic 2022

s alignment of
processes; and

* prand alignment
where appropriate.

Acquired revenue of £37m by year of acquisition

Insoivency Advisory Property services
25 —
20 —

15

6.0 6.0

Acquired revenue (Em)

2019 2020 2021 2022

Annual report and accounts 2022 Beghles Traynor Group ple 09



Strategic report

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Key performance indicators

10

The board uses the following KPIs to manage the performance of the
business and progress against our strategic objectives.

110.0

REVENUE (£m) e01 793

£110.0m

{2021 £83.8m)

The measure
Revenue generated from operating activities
in the financial year.

The target

To increase revenue by expanding the scale and quality
of our operating businesses both organically and
through strategic acquisitions.

9.1
6.9
ADJUSTED BASIC EPS (p) ag 7
40
9 p 18 19 20 21 22
(2021: 6.9p)

The measure
Adjusted EPS is calculated by dividing adjusted prefits
by the weighted average number of shares inissue

The target
To deliver growth in EPS to increase shareholder value.

ADJUSTED PROFIT
BEFORE TAX (Em) .5

£17.8m

{2027 £115m) B o120 A

The measure

Profit before tax generated by the business Inthe year,
adjusted to exclude iterns which arise due to acguisitions,
which are charged to the income statement under [FRS 3 and
are notinfluenced by the day-to-day operations of the group.

The target
To deliver sustainable growth in adjusted profit before tax

4.7

NET CASH (DEBT) {fm) 30
(7.5) (6.0) (2.8) 21 22

£4.7m 20

{2021 £30m) 19
18

The measure

Cash net of borrowings (pre-1FRS 16).

The target

To maintaim a strong financial positon with sufficient
capacity in our capital structure to enable conunuwing
investment in the business with the ability to act swiftly
when opportunities arise

Commentary on financial performance on these KPIs and other financial information 1s included in the finance review on page 13.

Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual repart and accounts 2022



Strategic report Corperate governance

Operating review

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

Business recovery and financial advisory

REVENUE (£m)

£81.4m

(2021: £59.7m)

SEGMENTAL PROFITS (£m)

£21.0m

{2021 £14.7m}

81.4 21.0

59.7 14.7

20 21 22 0 21 22

Financial summary

Revenue increased by 36% (5% organic) to £871 £m (2021: £55 7my,
reflacting the benefit from recent acquisitions combined with an
increase in activity levels

Operating costs increased by £15.4m to £60.4m (2021 £45.0m},
principally from costs associated with acquired businesses.
However, these costs reduced as a percentage of revenue which
resulted in improved operating margins of 25.8% (20271 24.6%).

Segmental profits” increased by 43% to £21.0m (2021 £14.7m).

Business recovery

The results for the year reflect the significant increase in the scale
of our business recovery activities, which resulted from the
acquisitions of CVR Global and David Rubin & Partners late in the
previous financial year. The teams have integrated well into the
group and delivered strong results over the last twelve months

Over the course of the financial year, the measures introduced by
the Government to protect companies during the pandemic were
gradually removed. As a result, UK insolvency numbers returned to
pre-pandemic levels, having been at historically low levels during
maost of the prior period, and we expect them to increase further
inthe current year and beyond.

Financial statements

Corparate insolvencies: naticnally increased by 50% to
16,648 (2021: 11,134, with the increase to date being from
liquidaticns (which are typically routine insolvencies of smaller
cornpanies) rather than admimistrations {typically larger and
more complex INstructions).

We have increased activity across all case sizes' srmaller, more
routine appointments growing through our extensive regional
network and digital marketing expertise; larger and more complex
appointments growing, as anticipated, fallowing the successfully
integrated acquisItians.

We remain the market leader {by velume of appointments) with
an increased market share resulting from organic development
of 14% (pricr year 12% reflecting the additional market share of
the acquired businesses}.

Our order book of committed future insolvency revenue has
increased to £23.5m {2021: £28.3my}, leaving the division well placed
to continue its track record of growth in the new financial year.

Financial advisory

At the start of the financial year, we acquired the finance broker
MAF Finance Group (MAF) MAF supports its broad client base
through arranging facilities for investment in new asset purchases
together with refinancing and restructuring existing facilities.
Finance broking complements the group's other advisory and
transactional services and deepens the group's existing
relationships with banks and other lenders.

The business traded well in1ts first year as part of the group and has
grown in ine with 1its earn out targets. Total lending arranged for
clients i the financial year increased to £330m from £150m in the
year prior to acquisiuon, This growth has been deliverad from
developing its healthcare and renewables financing expertise as
well as continuing growth in assat and property finance solutions

Cur Springbeard corporate finance team had a succéssful year,
providing buy and sell-side advice and benefitting from an M&A
market which continued 1o e very active

People

The numbper of peaple employed in the division has increased to
590 on 30 April 2022 from 555 at the start of the financial year,
fallowing the MAF acquisition We cantinue to consider further
recruitment to buld capacity for long-term growth and to develop
our service offering.

1 Seenoted

2 Source Trelrsoleency Sernce quartetly statist s or tne rumber of corporate nsolvenc es (gxclading comoulsery Lo aanonspir Eagland and Wales on a seasanaily

adjusted nas s
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Strategic report Corporate governance

Financial statements

Operating review continued

Property advisory and transactional services

REVENUE (£m) SEGMENTAL PROFITS (£m)
£28.6 £4.8
(2021 £24.1m) (2021 £3.9m)
28.6 4.8
241
20.6 3.9 3.9
20 21 20 Fal

Financial summary

Revenue increased by 19% (10% organic) to £28.6m {2021 £24 1m),
reflecting arganic growth of key service lines, the recoveryin
activity levels compared to the lockdown-impacted comparative
period and the first-time contnibution from acguisitions.

Operating costs increased 1o £23.8m (2021 £20.2m), principally
due to costs of acquired businesses.

Segmental profits' were £4 8m (2021 £3.9m), with operating
margins having increased to 16 8% (2021: 16.2%).

Operating review

The division was created through the acquisition of Eddisons
in December 2014, since when it has increased substantialty
in scale from annual revenue of C.£13m at incepticn to a
current annualised run rate in excess of £30m, together

with strong and growing profitability.

Our professional services team had a strong year providing real
estate valuation services (a secured lenders. This reflects the
benefit of investment in the team in recent years, which has
resulted in a business now operating as a national practice
providing services to the clearing banks together with a broad
range of specialist tenders Revenue growth n the year has come
from an tcreased number of inseructions together with higher
average fees, reflecting our enhanced reputation and expertise.

The building consultancy team continued 1o grow Its national offenng
to the education sector and its broad range of corparate clients.
The team now has a national foctprint and an excellent reputation,
which provides strong foundations for continuing growth

As previously reported, we have experienced a sustained recovery
in activity levels in our business sales agency, commercial property
agency, valuatton and auction businesses compared to the
lockdown-impacted comparative period

Acquisitions

We completed twe acquisitions during the year in line with our
strategy to enhance and broaden our service offerings and
geographical coverage.

In January 2022, we acquired Daniells Harrison, a valuation and
property consultancy practice opersung across the south coast

of England, which extended our coverage into a new geography.

In addition, we expanded our operations in South Yorkshire
through the acquisition of the team from Fernie Greaves Chartered
Surveyors in October 2021, who joined our existing Sheffield team.

People

The number of people employed in the division has increased to
326 on 30 Aprit 2022 from 306 at the start of the finanaal year,
following the abave acquisitions.

© Seencred
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Strategic report Corporate governance

Finance review

Nick Taylor

Group finance director

Financial summary

Financial statements

2022 2021
) £m ) B 7£rr7‘ i

Revenue 110.0 8238
Operating profit {Defore transaction costs and amortisation) 18.6 12.4
Finance costs (0.8) 0.9
Adjusted profit before tax 17.8 1.5
Transaction costs {8.3) {6 5)
Amartisation of irtangible assets arising on acguisitions {5.5) [EN)]
Profit before tax 4.0 19
Tax on profits on ordinary activities (2.7) {1.7)
Deferred tax charge due to change in tax rate (1.8) —
{Loss) profit for theyhéar (0.5) a2

Operating result {(before transaction costs
and amortisation)

Revenue in the year increased by £26.2mto £110.0m (2021; £83.8m),
an overall increase of 31%, of which 7% was organic and 24% was
acquired'. Operating profit increased by 50% to £18.6m (2021; £12.4m).

Operating margins improved to 16.9% (2021. 14.8%), due to profit

growth and margin enhancement in both divisicns. In addition,
shared and central costs as a percentage of group revenue
reduced to 6.5% (2021: 7.4%), reflecting the benefits of
increased scale.

Adjusted profit before tax increased by 55% to £17 8m
(2021 £115mj.

Transaction costs
Transaction costs arise due to acquisitons in accordance with
IFRS 3 and include the following:

e deemed remuneration, which relates to acguisition consideration,
where the vendors have obligations in the sale and purchase
agreement 1o provide post-acquisition services for a fixed period.
This consideration is charged to profit over the period of service;

» gains on acquisitions, where the fair value of assets acquired
exceeds the consideration (due to elerments of consideration
being accounted for as deemed remuneration and charged to
income as detalled above); and

* legal and professional fees incurred on acquisitions.

These costs (detalled in note 5)increased to £8.3m (2021 £6.5m)
in the year. This reflects an increase in deemed remuneration
charges from both current and pricr year acquisitions, partially
offset by 2 gain on acquisitian

S Rarryear contnibanon fromr acgu sitions inthe year are fullyear contrnibut on of price year acguisiions
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Corporate governance

Financial statements

Finance review continued

Tax

The overall tax charge for the year was £4.5m (2021 £1.7m)

as detailed below.

Partners and employees
On 30 Apnil 2022 the group had 1,000 partners and employees
(2021 940), the increase being prinapally due to acquisiuons

The average number of full-time equivalent (FTE') partners and

2022
Profit Profit employees working in the group during the year is detailed below
before tax Tax after tax Effective
£m £m £m rate 2022
Adjusted 17.8 (3.7) 141 20% Business  FProperty
) recovery advisory Shared
Transaction ¢osts {8.3) — (8.3) — and and and
Amortisation (5.5) 1.0 (4.5) 19% financial transactional  suppart
advisory services teams Total
Statutory (before
Part 5 — — 85
one-off charge) 4.0 {2.7) 1.3 68% ners 8
, Staff 395 268 - 663
Deferred tax
charge from Fee earners 480 268 w— 748
change in rate - 1.8 (1.8) —  Supportteams 68 7 77 152
Statutory 4.0 (4.5 (0.5) 1M3%  Total 548 275 77 900
2021 2621
Profic Profi: Blsiress Property
before tax Tax after tax Effective recovery ATVISOry Sharen
£m fm Emr rate and ard ars
Adiusted 115 (2.3) g2 20% financial  trarsactioral SLPPOrT
| . . - adwiscry sevices 2ams lotal
Transaction costs (6.5} — 65 —
Amortsation (3.1) 06 (2.5) 198 ~ Farmers 0 - - I
Staff 285 237 — 522
Statutory 19 (1.7} 0.2 89%
Fea earners 355 237 — 592
The deferred tax charge from the change inrate of £1.8mis a Support teams 45 5 68 18
one-off non-cash charge, resulting from an increase in deferred Total 400 243 58 710

tax liabilities following the legislation to increase the UK
corporation tax rate to 25% being enacted during the year.

Earnings per share

Adjusted basic earnings per share’ increased by 32% to 9.1p
(2021 6.9p). Basic loss per share of 0.3p (2021 earnings per share
of 0.1p), resulting from the one-off non-cash deferred tax charge

noted above.

The ratio of our support teams to fee earning partners and staff
15 49{2021 5.0}

Acquisitions
During the financial year, the group made the following acquisitions:

* MAF Property Limited (MAF) on 9 May 2021 for initial
consideration of £3.0m {£2.0m cashand £1 Omn shares -
cash free and debt free); potential earn out of up to £8.75m
subject 1o delivering material growth in profits over the four year
period past-acquisition.

Inits financial year ended 31 December 2020, MAF reported
revenue of £3.7m and normalised pre-tax profits of £0.3m
when reparted on the same basis as the group.

1 seerecore | atior e nute 10
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e Daniells Harrnson Surveyors LLP (Daniells Harrisar') on
G January 2022 for inivial consideration of £1.0m (£0.75m cash
and £0 25m in shares - cash free, debt free); potentiat earn out
of up to £8.75m subject to delivering material growth in profits
over the four year pericd post-acquisition.

Inits financial year ended 31 March 2021, Daniells Harrison
reported revenue of £2.1m and normalised pre-tax profits of
[0.4m whenr reported on the same basis as the group.

In addition, n October 2021, we expanded our property services
team in South Yorkshire through the acquisition of the team from
Fernie Greaves Chartered Surveyors for consideration of £0.25m.

The net cash outflow from acquisitions was £8.2m, comprising
current year acquisitions of £2 9m and prior year acquisitions
of £5.3m.

The value of net assets acquired exceeds the accounting value of
constderation (as a result of the elements of consideration being
accounted for as deemed remuneration) and consequently a gatn
of £2.0m has been recognised within transaction costs in the year

Liquidity

The group remains in a very streng financial position At 30 April 2022,
the group had net cash of £4.7m (2021: £3 Om), represented by
cash balances of £9.7m (2021: £8.0m} net of drawn borrowing
facilities of £5.0m {20271 £5.0m). All bank covenants were
comfortably met during the year.

We have extended our borrewing facilities with HSBC which
now mature in August 2024 and comprise a £25m unsecured,
committed revolving credit facility (of which £5m was drawn

at 30 April 2022) and a £5m uncommitted acquisition facility.
We have significant levels of headroom in these facllities to fund
organic investrment and acquisiticn opportunities

Cash flow
The group remains strongly cash generative and increased its free
cash flow to £14.0m (2021, £12.3m).

Cash flow in the year is summarised as follows:

2022 207"
£m £m

Met cash from operating activities (before

deemed remuneration) 18.2 16.2
Capital expenditure {(1.0) (1.2}
Capital element of lease payments {3.2) (27)
Free cash flow 14.0 12.3
Net proceeds from share 1ssues 0.5 208
Acquisition and deferred consideration

payments {8.2) (239)
Dividends (4.6) (3.6)
Increase in net cash 1.7 5.7

Financial statements

Net assets

AL 30 April 2022 net assetswere £84.5m (2021 £86 3m).

The £1.8m reductionin net assets reflects the post-tax impact

of acquisition-related transaction and amortisation costs of
£12.8m and the one-off deferred tax charge of £1.8m, which
offset post-tax adjusted earmings of £14.1m net of dividends

of £4.6m, a £1.5m credit for equity-settled share-based payments
and L1 8m from the 1ssue ol new shares to satisfy share oplions
and acquisition consideration.

Going concern
The group is in a strong finanaal positon and has sigrificant
liquidity as detailed above.

In carrying out their duties in respect of going concern. the
directors have completed a review of the group’s financial
farecasts for 2 period exceeding 12 maonths from the date of
approving this statement. This review included sensitivity analysis
and stress tests to determine the potential impact on the group
of reascnably possible downside scenarics. Under all modetled
scenarios, the group's banking facilities were sufficient and all
assoclated covenant measures were forecast 1o be met.

As aresult, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company and the group have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
financial information in these financial statements is prepared on
the going concern basis.

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
18 Juby 2022 18 July 2022

Annual report and accounts 2022 Beghies Traynor Group ple 15



Strategic report Corporate governance

Stakeholder engagement

Section 172 statement

The following disclosure forms the directors’ statement required
under section 414CZA of the Companies Act 2006 on how the
directors have had regard to the matters set out In section 172 (1}
(atto (f) in performing their duties The board recognises that
engagement with its stakeholders s fundamental 1o the long-term
success of the company and considers the views and interests

of all key stakehalders inits decision making

The principal decisions made by the board during the year
are as follows®

COVID-19 response

During the year, we continued to manage the impact of
Government guidance on office wark and the resulting impact

on cur teams, where the majority of our employees have worked
remotely when required. Following the conclusion of Government
resrictions. we have been able ta allow our teams to return to our
offices as required.

Acquisitions

During the financial year the group completed three acquisitions,
in line with cur strategy to increase the scaie, quality and range of
the group's services. The board believe this strategy increases
value for all stakeholders and is for the long-term benefit of

the group

Sustainability

The board has continued to develop its sustainability strategy in
the year with key developments and an ESG action plan being
agreed as detailed on pages 18 to 21.

Capital structure

The board reviewed 1ts capital structure during the year and
extended the group's committed banking facilities with HSBC
which now mature in August 2024. Thisis a long-running
relationship which commenced in 2010. The board believes that
this facility provides the group with the flexibility required to
enable continuing investment in the business, including
acguisitions, funding operationat requirements and making
dividend distributions to sharehalders.

16 Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2022
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Why we engage

The business is dependent on the professional
development, recruitment and retention of our highly
experienced partners and staff, who are responsible
far delivering a high-quality service ta cur clients

The directors recognise that the guality, motivation
and commitment of our people are fundamental to
the group's success.

Access to capitalis of vital impartance to the long-term
success of our business

Through cur engagement activities, we aim to obtain
investor support for our strategic objectives and our
execution of them.

We believe that delivering value for our sharehclders
ensures that the business continues to be successful
in the jong term and continues to detiver value for all
our stakehoiders.

Cur chents are key to the success of our business.

We believe that through our community engagement
activities we can make a beneficial impact on the areas
where gur people live and work

We are conscious of the impact we have on the environment
and are committed to making positive changes to mimimise
this where possible.

Financial statements

How we engage

We engage and interact with our teams both on a local office

level and nationally as detalled on page 20.

The senior management teams acroass all the group’s
operations meet both formally and informally on a regular
basis with the executive directors.

The chairman and finance director have primary
responsibility for investor relations ('IR’) and lead a
regular programme of engagement. This includes results
annguncements, which are also available an the group's
IR website The IR programme maintams ongoing
communication with sharenolders and helps to ensure
that the board is aware of shareholders’ views.

The board also receives feedback from its brokers on
investors’ and the market's percepticns of the company.

The company makes anncuncements using the regulatory
news service {RNS') throughout the financial year on
major developments

The AGM provides an opportunity for all shareholders
to ask questions and to meet the directors.

The group has a diverse client base across its service lines.
Qur chent facing tearms are in continuous cantact with therr
client base and have responsibility for both understanding
their expectations and managing the delivery of our service.

Qur sustainability cornmitment, as detailed on pages 18
te 21, ams to add value to the communities in which we
operate, whilst mimimising our impact on the environment,

Annual report and accounts 2022 Begbies Traynor Group plc
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Sustainability

Our commitment to a sustainable future

Financial statements

The board is committed to developing the business in a sustainable way for the benefit of all
our stakeholders. We look to minimise our impact on the environment; have a positive impact
for our people and the communities we serve; and operate with a culture of strong

governance and responsible behaviour.

Our environmental, social and governance
('ESG’) goals

We will work te deliver sustainability cutcomes for the group
that are relevant, achievable and verifiable, including:

» compliance with ESG laws, regulations and reportng;

» excellence in the management and empowerment of our
humar capital - including diversity, equity and inclusion
practices for our workforce;

e atransition plan for the group to meet the UK's target
of achieving net zero carbon emissions by 2050,

* 3 commitment to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance; and

« transparent disclosure of data that underpin
our stated commitments.

ESG developments
We have made progress in the following areas since the last
annual report

* appointed external consultants to advise the board
on matenal areas of focus for sustainability and our
ESG strategy;

* ESG goals and action plan approved by the board;

sustainability group formed and met on five occasions
Proposed intiatives were approved by the board in
December 2021 to target emissions reductions and
efficiency drives across cur office netwaork;

targeted reductions in scope 1 and 3 emissions through
commencing a transition to uitra-low emission vehicles
across the group

s fleet car policy updated to be exclusively electric or
plug-in hybrid electric vehicles, This wilt reduce CO.e
emissions over the next three years as existing cars
are replaced at the end of lease with ultra-low
emission vehicles; and

e introduced a salary sacrifice car scheme to enable all
employees to purchase a low emission vehicle in a tax
efficient manner and encourage the transition of our
employees te more environmeantally friendly vehicles:

e created a new senior group role of people director
and appointed a highly experienced HR professional
to the role to enhance our human capital management
including actions on diversity, equity and inclusion; and

s maintained our strong governance environment.

8egbies Trayner Group plc Annual report and accounts 2022

ESG action plan
We will progress our sustainability strategy via a five-step
process summarised as follows

1) Establish an effective internal ESG governance and
management body. The cammittee will report to the
board with the purpose of.

a} providing a focus on sustainability within the group;
b

¢} highlighting ESG compliance issues, risks and
opportunities; and

delivering the group's sustainability strategy:

d} contributing to the group’s evelution and
transformation through ensuring that it remains
aligned with the principles of sustainability.

Z)Enhance the group’s resilience. We will develop robust
contingency plans to strengthen our response to a range
of risk factors within the ESG landscape which could impact
on the long-term viability of our business.

3)Menitor our ESG performance. We will identify the key
ESG performance indicators that apply to the group and
monitor our performance against these measures.

4) Rectify shortcomings and innovate. Based on the
evidence gathered regarding our E5G performance, we will
rectify any shortcomings through taking opportunities to
improve and Innovate through the Insights we gain Analysis
of the data we gather will aisc inform our work to produce a
transition plan for the 2050 net zero carbon target. As part
of this important step we will identify the resources required
to invest in our transition to a more sustainable future.

5)Disclose and communicate. We will disclose and
cammunicate our ESG data to all our stakeholders cpenly
and transparently and we will be clear about the measures
we take to enhance our sustainability performance.

COur sustainability agenda focusses on the three ESG pillars,
each built on robust and ethical business practices:

e environmental;
e sgcial; and

* governance.
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Environment

Environmental commitment

As a professional services business, we believe that the group
has a low environmental impact when compared to many
other industries. However, we are conscious of the impactwe

Corporate governance

Financial statements

Sustainability group

do have on the environment and are committed to makmg
positive changes to minimise this where possible.

We helieve the measures required to limit the effects of climate
change, including meeting the Net Zero Carbon challenge, are
fundamental to our long-term business interests and entiraly

consistent with our vision and values

Greenhouse gas emissions (‘GHG’) statement
During the year, the group's emissions have increased in absolute terms, reflecting the increase in scale of the group and its
operations, but remain below the pre-pandemic year of 2020 The emissions per FTE have remained at 2021 levels reflecting a

33% decrease on pre-pandemic levels in 2020.

We have a sustainahility group made up of employees from
across the business who look to develop and manage our plans
to reduce emissions and waste across our office network.

Un.t 2022 2020 2020
GHG emissions
Scope t Tonnes of CO,e 193 147 208
Scope 2 Tonnes of CO,e 164 162 216
Scope 3 Tonnes of COe 222 143 194
Total group emissions Tonnes of COe 579 452 618
Intensity measure
Eqrz'risézfzssyt;‘f:me equivalent Tonnes of CO.e/FTE 0.64 0.64 0.96
Emissions by group revenue Tonnes of COLe/£m group revenue 5.26 539 877
Energy consumption
Scape 1 kWh 810,000 655,000 865,000
Scape 2 kwh 773,000 764,000 846,000
Scope 3 kwh 900,000 576,000 753,000
Total kWh 2,483,000 1,995,000 2,464,000

Seope 1 are d et emissions from fusl consumption in ek er puildings or trom carpany leased or owned vehi les

Scope 2 arewrdirect emissions rom the purcbase of electriaty rour ffices

Stope 3 arg eruss.ons from ine use of parsonal of prvately airec venicles used fur company Dusiness wkere emolays=s are re mbursad based on daims

for ousimess reileage

E-niasions wrica result rom trairm travel, fhghts and tax journeys are not clucec ' tne emiss ons table

“he caroon dica de eguvalenr [CO @) emissiers data for 2022 and 202 has beer calculated using the err ssion faors fror the UK Governmant's GrG Corversion
Factors for Camrpary Reporturg 2027 pubihaned on 2 lune 2027 {30320 using 2079 convers or factors)
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Sustainability continued

Social
Social commitment
We are committed 1o a culture which ensures that.

= pur people are valued and enjoy working for the group;
* can develop their talents and fulfil their potential; and

* sharen corporate success through reward packages
including share incentive schemes,

Employee engagement

During the year, we have continued to focus on our
colleagues’ safety and engagement We have continued to
support hybrid working arrangements as working patterns
begin to normalise following the pandemic, taking
advantage of technology

We continue to engage and interact with our teams
through a vanety of means:

* corporate intranets including a group-wide
communication teol, BTG insight,

regular team meetings;

internal updates from the executive chairman on
major corparate events including financial results
announcements and acquisitions; and

¢ one-to-one apprasals throughout the year

We have not completed an employee opinion survey
during the year and are planning the next survey for the
new financial year The most recent survey in November
2020 (which was benchmarked against comparable
companies) was completed by 64% of eligible employees
(comparator average 709%) with an overall engagement
score of 75% (comparator average 71%;.

Development and potential

we believe in the value of investing In and developing
future talent within the group. We provide support to
enable our colleagues ta develop, and in many cases
gain professional qualifications, to further their chesen
career progression.

We provide this support through apprenticeships, work
experience and financing study programmes. This enables
our people ta gain professional qualifications in accountancy,
insalvency, chartered surveying, business banking and
asset finance. We also provide work placement
opportumties for undergraduates, which in many

cases will lead to a graduate employment opportunity

In the group.

Financial statements

During the year we have provided support to 93 of our
team to gain ther professional qualifications.

In addition, for our gualified colleagues the BTG Academy
pragramme assists them in developing tha range of kills
required to undertake more senior roles in the
orgarusaticon, together with support for continumg
professicnal development.

Retention

We aim to provide a positive environment and culture for
our teams and benefit frem good employee and partner
retention levels. The retention rate' over the last financial
year was 90% (2027 92%).

Sharing our success

We aim 1o provide market competitive reward packages for
our people, which comprise a competitive salary, together
with a honus and other benefits where applicable.

We believe that it is important for our people to share

n the success of the group and we have share incentive
schemes in place. These include an all-employee save as
you earn ('SAYE") scheme and share option schemes.

In total 24% {2021: 48%) of our colleagues currently
participate N either SAYE or share option schemes. The
decrease in participation reflects the maturity of the 2018
SAYE scheme during the financial year and the sigrificant
increase in employees following recent acquisitions A new
SAYE scheme 1s planned for release in the new financial
year, which will pe the first opportunity for employees who
have joined the group s:ince October 2020 to join 4 share
incentive scheme.

Equal opportunities

The group 1s an equal opportunities employer and its
policy 1s to recruit, prormote, train and develop its pecple
by reference to their skilis, abilities and other attributes of
value to their role in the business.

As at 30 April 2022 our total workforce of 1,000 colleagues
comprised 585 males and 415 females. In common with
other professional services firms, there are a greater
proportion of male employees and partners in qualified
and executive roles. The gender mix at this level was 322
males and 103 females.

in accordance with the Equalty Act 2010, Begbies Traynor
Limited, as an employer with 250 or more UK empleyees
publishes its gender pay statistics {(calculated in
accordance with the published requirements) on the
Begbies Traynor website.

Begbies Traynor Group plc Annual report and accounts 2022
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The board recognises the importance of diversity across
the arganisation and at board level, and diversity will farm
part of cur consideratiors in the cngoing development
and succession of the board,

Health and safety

The group is committed to ensuring the well-being and
safety of its employees in its offices and places of work.
Qur polices and procedures are designed to ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and the group
employs external consultants to both review cur palicies
and provide recormmendations on areas for improvement.

The group's response to COVID-19 over the last two years
has been to focus on the health, safety and well-being of
our people, which invalved the majority of pecple working
remotely and the pravision of a safe working environment
for those that required access to our offices. In recent
months there has been a progressive return of people

to our offices on a regular basis

Community involvement

Our clients include commercial organisations, financial
institutions, government and public sector bodies.

We provide them with advice and transacticnal support,
often in challenging situations, to pratect, enhance and
realise the value of their assets. investments and people,
throughout the economic cycle

Qur offices operate in the heart of their lacal communities
We support these communities through charity and
fundraising work as well as working with local schools,
colleges and unmversities to support young people

in establishing a career in professional services using
apprenticeships, work experience and graduate
placement schemes.

Governance

Governance commitment

The board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance, We recognise that a positive
culture, together with a robust approach to governance,
15 key to the success of the organisation.

We have a clear approach to governance and risk
management with a hughly experienced leadership
team, together with robust complhance and
goverrance procedures.

Financial statements

Many of the group’s service lines are regulated oy
externally governed codes of practice and ethical
behaviour. This is reinforced by group policies in
the following areas:

Whistleblowing

We are committed to maintaining high ethical standards
and take any malpractice very seriously All our employees
should feet able to raise any matters of concern to their
manager. If they are not able to do so, we have a
whistleblowing policy in place which applies across

the group.

Anti-bribery and corruption

We have a zero-tolerance approach to bribery and other
forms of corruption and our policies are designed to
ensure compliance with relevant laws wherever we

do business.

Modern slavery

The Modern Slavery Act came inte force in 2015 We have
a zerg-tolerance approach 10 modern slavery and believe
that the risk of slavery or human trafficking in the
recruitment and engagement of our employees is low. This
is further enhanced by our approved supplier process to
mandate this approach across suppliers. The group's
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Statement is
avallabie on the group's website.

Data protection and information security
The group has policies in place to protect personal data
held by the group, which meet the requirements of the
Data Protection Act 2018 (incorporating GDPR). In
addition, annual data protection compliance training

is completed by our emnployees and partners.

we have information security policies in place which are
Cyber Essentials Plus accredited. There is an cngoing
programme of online training for all employees, which
highlights key areas of information security risk and raises

awareness of this critical risk area. During the year, no data

breaches arcse from the group's managed IT
infrastructure, which would have required formal
notification to the information Commissioner.

Annual report and accounts 2022 Beghies Traynor Group plc
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The operations of the group and the implementation of the group’s strategy involve
a number of risks and uncertainties, the principal of which are described below.

Managing our risks

The group's strategic objectives (see page 8) include increasing the scale and quality of cur businessas and the delivery of sustainatble
profitable growth, The board encourages an appetite of measured risk-taking in the delivery of these objectives, which is balanced by
a process of risk identification, evaluation and management.

Risk management framework

Board of directors

» Responsibility for risk management, setting strategic objectives and risk appetite

* Accountable for the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management processes

Audit committee

s Supports the board by averseeing the internal control and risk management processes

Divisional management teams

» Responsible for the identification and evaluation of risks, notably in relation to client engagements

» Implementation of specific risk management activities through divisional risk committees

Principal risks and mitigating activities

The directors have carried out a robust assessment of the material and emerging risks facing the group. Qutlined on the following page
are the current principal nsks and uncertainties faced by the operations of the group and the implementation of its strategy The list is
not exhaustive and other. as yet unidenufied, factors may have an adverse effect. The group's controls are designed to manage rather
than eliminate risk and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or foss
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Risk

Financial statements

Mitigating activities

Recruitment and retention of high-calibre partners and employees

The business s dependeant upon the professional develooment,
recruitment and retention of partners and e ployees

Business continuity

Significant nor-IT events may impact on our service to clients and
access to operating locations with a potential adverse effect on
operational performance and reputation

Operational gearing

The business is operationally geared with a high proportion of salary
and property costs, which cannot be immed ately varied.
Consequently. the group's profitability 1s hable to short-term
fluctuations dependent on activity levels.

Liquidity risk

The group’s ability to generate cash from its insolvency apoointments
15 usually reliant on asset realisations, A deteriorater in “ealsations in
the short term could recuce the group's operating cash generaton
and increase its financing requirements.

Marketplace

The group's markets are susceptible (o MacroaConomic mavemeants,
such as Interast rates. GOP changes and indebteaness levels,

The greup manages this nisk througn providing'
* 3 compettive reward structure,

* benefits ircluding all-employee share schemes and salary sacrifice
car schemes;

s support to develop careers and gain profess onal quatifications, and

* selective use of share-based ard other long-term Incent've awaras to
incentivise and retain key oeople.

We have business cont nuity plans in place across the business which
mclude the atulity to work from alternate operating locations During the
COVID-19 operating restrictions. the majority of our teans successfully
worked from home

This riskis managed through flexing our resource levels, where possible,
to align with current and anticicated levels of activity, together w th the
control of ather discretionary items of exoenditure, A prudent level of
spare Capacity is retarred to ‘achitate peaks i act'vity

The group mionitors its nsk of a shortage in funds through regular cash
management and forecasting and ensuring suitable readroom within its
banking facilities.

The group's objective is to maintai~ & balence between cortinuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of its committed banking facilities,
together with bank overdrafts and loans, finance leases and hire purchase
contracts if required.

The group's service lines have differing exposure to the macroeconsmic
environment as detailed in the ousiness madel on page 6, providing
mitigation of this risk at a consolidated level.

The group operates in a highly competitive market and 1s reliant an
the flow of new assignments

This risk 1s managed through a2 consistent e“fort in marketing and selling
activity and maintaining strong relationships with key work providers,
including finarcial institutions, investors and other professional mtermedianies
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Risk
Legal and regulation

The group operates in regulated markets, Failure to comply with, or
charges in, regulation or legislation may have an adverse impact on
the actvitles of the business.

Mitigating activities

To ensure compliance with relevant legisiation in performing regulated
actviues, the group has gedicated compliance functions which maintain
procedures and policies in ine with current legislzuon.

tn the ordinary course of business, certain aspects of the group's
services are opinion based and may be subject to challenge.

Failure or interruption in IT systems

A major faifure in the group's IT systems may result in either a loss or
corruption of data or ar interrupt'on i1 client service, which may have
a consequential impact on our reputation and profitability.

There is a r sk that an attack on our IT systems by a malicious
individual or groug may be successful and impact on the availability
of these systems.

Acquisition risk

The vatuation, structuring and integratior of acquisitions is critical
to real sing the benefits from the transactions

The group has robust processes in place ircluding drisional risk
committees and appropriate internal review processes. Where
appropriate, the group may seek third-party professional corroboratior,
In addition, the group has appropriate insura~ce policies in place.

Spedific off-site back-up and resilierce regurements have been built nto
our T systems which have been set up, as far as reascnably practicable, to
prevent unauthorised access and mitigate the impact and likelheod of a
major IT fallure or cyber attack. The group 1 Cyber Essentials Plus accregited.

The group has disaster recovery plans ir place to cover resicdual
risks which cannot be mitigated and maintains appropriate cyber
response insurance,

The group 1s constantly reviewing its processes and resilience ip
this area due to the increasing threar landscape.

The groun has well-established processes in place to evaluate, structure
and subsequently complete appropriate acquisitions We have a clear
post-acquisition integration strategy and plan to ensure shareholder
value is delivered.

Post-acquistion management reporting keeps the beard updatec on
progress against plan.

Approval

The strategic report on pages 110 24 was approved by the board and signed onits behalf by

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
18 July 2022 18 July 2022
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Chairman’s
introduction

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

The board 15 committed to mantaning high standards
of corporate governance As chairman, itis my role

to ensure that these standards are promoted by the
board and to ensure that the group is managed in

the bestinterests of shareholders and our broader
stakehalder group.

We recognise that a positive culture, together with a
robust appreach to governance, is key to the success
of the organusation. As a professional services
consultancy the group's services are regulated by
externally governed codes of practice and ethical
behaviour These regulatory professional standards
are reinforced by the board which sets the culture
of the group 1In promoting entrepreneurial growth
against the background of sound regulatory
compliance and ethical standards and a

measured approach to risk taking.

We seek to be a trusted advisor to all our clients,
to act with integrity at all umes and to take pride
in the advice and solutions we provide

We have a clear appreach to governance and
risk management with a highly experienced
leadership team in executive and senior
management positions together with robust
compliance and governance procedures.

Financial statements

We are committed to a cufture which ensures that our
people enjoy warking for the group, can develop their
talents and fulfil their potental with us.

In the following sections we have provided details on
our approach to governance and apphcation of the
QCA Code, including reports from the audit and
remuneraticn committees | believe that the framework
provided by the QUA Code contributes to our ability

to deliver long-term shareholder value and assists

the board in managing the business for all of its
stakeholders, whilst maintaining a flexible, efficient

and effective management framework within an
entrepreneurial environment.

Further detail on our compliance with the QCA
Code can be found on our website at https.Awww.
begbies-traynorgroup.com/investor-relations/
corporate-governance,

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman
18 July 2022
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Board of directors

Ric Traynor
Executive chairman

C

Appointment date:
May 2004

Experience

Ric has been an insolvency
pracutioner since qualifying as a
chartered accountant with Arthur
Andersen in 1984. He established
Traynor & Co. i 1989 which, following
the acquisition of Begbies London in
1997, became Begbies Traynor,

Ric has focussed on the development
of the business, including the group's
successful introduction to AIM in 2004
and on practice management He
continues to lead the business and
remains a major shareholder

'

C Chair

A  Audit committee

R Remuneration committee

I Independent

Nick Taylor

Group finance director

Appointment date:
December 2010

Experience

Nick was appointed to the board in
2010, having originally joined the
group as financial controller in 2007
He 1s a chartered accountant with
broad experience of M&A, financial
reporting and operational
management. He qualified with KPMG
in Manchester and previously held
senior finance roles in United Utilities
PLC and Vertex Data Science Limited,
the business process outsoUrcer.
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Mark Fry

Head of business recovery
and advisary

Appointment date:
july 2011

Experience

Mark was appointed 1t the board in
2011, having Joined the group in 2085
fallowing an acquisition and te led our
Lendon and South East region prior to
his board appointment.

He is the national head of our business
recovery and advisory services, is an
experienced insolvency practiticner,
and has been appointed on numerous
complex and high-profile assignments.
Mark 15 also a former president of the
Insolvency Practitroners Association.
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John May

Negn-executive director

A R |

Appointment date:
Cctober 2007

Experience

John was appointed to the
boardin 2007 as a
non-executive director, He
was an executive director
of Caledania Investments
plc from 2003-2011 prior
to which he worked for the
Hambros Group for over
20 years, where he was an
executive director of
Hambros Bank and joint
managing director of
Hambro Countrywide. John
also has extensive
non-executive experience
having been a director of
more than 40 listed and
private companies
operating both in the

UK and globally.

Corporate governance

Graham McInnes
Non-executive director

A R |

Appointment date;
September 2004

Experience

Graham was appointed to
the beard in 2004, initially
as group finance director
and subsequently as
corporaie development
director In 2012, Graham
became a non-executive
director. He has held a
number of senior finance
positions including
corporate finance partner
at Spicer and Oppenheim
{now part of Deloitte) and
finance director of
Enterprise plc, in addition
to developing his own
corporate finance
boutigue in the 1990s.
Graham is also a director
of Newtan Technalogy
Group plc, a group
specialising in the
engineering

technology secror.

Financial statements

Mark Stupples

Non-executive director

R |

Appointment date:
July 2017

Experience

Mark was appointed to the
boardin 2017 as a
non-executive director. He
has significant property
SEervICes experience as a
result of his senior roles in
major firms, including King
Sturge as UK managing
partner, and JLL as UK
chief operating officer until
leaving the business in
December 2016 Duning
this time, Mark had
responsibility for the
operation of the business
working closely with
Finance, HR, and IT, and
was responstble for the UK
sustainablity strategy.
Mark now runs his own
consultancy focussing

on business strategy

and change.

Mark 1s an experienced
Trustee, charing both the
JLL Retirement Benefits
Scheme and the JLL UK
Foundation Inthis latter
role, the Foundaticn is
focused en sacial mobihity
inthe real estate sector.
This has strengthened
Mark’'s beliefin the need
for inclusion alongside
diversity.

Peter Wallqvist

Non-executive director

Appointment date:
December 2019

Experience

Peter was appeinted to the
board in December 2019
as a non-exacutive
director. Petar has spent
his career in information
technology. In 2010, he
co-founded and became
chief executive officer at
the Al company RAVN
Systems which delivered
digital transformation
mitiatives n the
professional services
ndustry. RAVN Systems
was acquired by iManage,
2 leading vendor of
document and emai
management systems for
the legal and professional
services industries in 2017
Following the acquisition,
Peter served as VP of
strategy and global
practice director for
iManage, untl he left the
business in Octaber 2019.
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Corporate governance

Overview
The group has established specific committees and implemented
certain pol:cies, ta ensure that:

e 1t1s led by an effective board which s collectively responsible for
ceeating and sustaining sharehaolder value through management
of the business;

+ the board and ies committees have the apprepriate balance of
skills, experience, independence, and knowledge of the group
to enable them to discharge their respective duties and
respansibiities effectively;

« the group applies appropriate corporate reporting, risk
management and internal control principles and for mamntaining
an appropriate relationship with the group’s auditors; and

¢ there is a dialogue with shareholders based on the mutual
understanding of objectives.

In addition, the group has adepted policies in relation to anu-
corruption and bribery; anti-money laundering and economic
crime; whistleblowing; health and safety; IT, communications
and systems; and social media, so that all aspects of the group are
run in a robust and responsible way. These policies are regularly
reviewed and updated to ensure continued complance.

Responsibilities of the board
The board 15 responsible for creating and sustaining sharehclder
value through management of the business. It does this by

» setting the strategy and directian of the company;

» maintaining appropriate controls to ensure the effective
operation of the company;

s approving revenue and capital budgets and plans,

o approving financial statements, material agreements and
Nan-recurring projects;

« determining the financial structure of the company including
treasury and dividend policy;

» overseeing control, audit and risk management; and
» setting and monitoring remuneration policies

Specific responsibilities have been delegated to committees
of the board, being the audit and remuneration committees
The terms of reference for these committees are avallable on
the group's website.

It the absence of a formal nominations committee the board is
responsible for ensuring that it retains an appropriate composition
and balance of skills and expertise together with considering
relevant succession.

Operational maragement of the group's respective divisions 1s
delegated by the board to two princ.ipal operating boards
{business recovery and advisory services and praperty services)
which comprise relevant members of the group's executive and
non-executive directors, together with senior partners and
managers from the respective divisions.
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statement

Board members

Itis important that the board contains the night mix of skills and
experience in order to deliver the strategy of the group. The board
15 comprnised of the executive chairman, two other executive
directors and four non-executive directors.

Role of the executive chairman

Ri¢ Iraynar, who established the business and led the group's
introduction to AIM, fulfils the role of executive chairman being
responsible for the workings and leadership of the board together
with managing the business with the support of the other
executive directors.

Whilst the QCA Code requires the charman to have adequate
separation from the day-to-day business, the board beheves the
current role Is appropriate and in the best interests of the group.
In racognition of this non-compliance with the QCA Code the
board has a majority of non-executive directors and Graham
Mclinnes, one of its non-executive directors, acts as the senior
independent director.

Executive directors

The group has two executive directors, in addition to the executive
chairman, who are responsible for managing the delivery of the
business plans within the strategy set by the board.

Non-executive directors

The group has four non-executive directors (NEDs'). The NED's
role 1s to provide oversight and scrutiny of the performance of the
executive directors, helping the business to develep, communicate
and execute its agreed strategy withir the defined risk
management framework.

The NEDs are expected to attend all board meetings, any
committee meetings of which they are a member and the annual
general meeting In addition, Mark Stupples is the non-executive
chairman of the property services operating board. NEDs are
expected to dedicate sufficient time to the group’s affairs ©o
erable them to fulfil their duties as directors.

The board considers that the four NEDs act as independent
directors and have no business or other relationship which
could interfere materially with the exercise of their judgement.

Company secretary

The company secretary provides advice and guidance to the extent
required by the board on the legal and regulatory ervironment
and assists the chairman in preparning for and running effective
board meetings, including the tumely dissemination of appropriate
information All directors have access 10 the company secretary
and all group records Each director 1s autharised to take externai
adwvice at the expense of the company in support of his duties, The
company secretary also acts as the hink between the company and
shareholders on matters of governance and investor relations
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Election of directors

Each director serves on the board until the annual general meeting
following his or her election or appomtment where the director
must stand for re-elecuon In accordance with the group's articles
of association one third of the directors are re-elected on an
annual basis, with those directors who have been in office the
longest being subject to this requirement

in addition, in accordance with the QCA Code, any independent
non-executive directors who have served for more than nine years
will stand for re-election at each AGM.

Board evaluation

The most recent evaluation of board performance was conducted
in April 2022, facilitated by the company secretary. This involved
reviewing developments since the previous baard evaluation
session through the completion of a questionnaire based on the
ten principles of the QCA Code This enabled progress made by
the board ta be accurately assessed.

Financial statements

During the year the group continued to make progress in the areas
of shareholder and ermnployee engagement, as well as ensuring the
successful integration of the recent acquisitions to the group

Board meetings

The full board meets formally on a quarterly basis and informally
where relevant throughout the year Agendas for these meetings
formalise the matters reserved for decision by the board with
papers circulated in advance for consideration and comment.
Meetings are structured to aliow for the open discussion and
debate of the key issues.

Attendance at board and committee meetings during the financial
year is shown in the table below

Audit Remuneraron
Board meetings cemmittee maetings Lommittes weatings

eligbie eligible eligible
Director aitended to attend attendad taattend attended 1o attend
Ric Traynor 5 5 —! —! — —:
Nick Taylor 5 5 —3 —3 — —
Mark Fry 5 5 — — — —
John May 5 5 4 4 2 2
Graham Mcinnes 4 5 4 4 1 2
Mark Stupples 5 5 — — 2 2
Peter Wallgvist 5 5 — — — —
| The exacutue chairman atiended four audi comittee reetings Ly inviratian
2 The erecuf ve charman atiendad a0 "eMmuUneration comrites meetngs by nvitatan
2 The group f nance director arie-ged fou- audit comrittee meetings by invitaticn
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Audit committee
report

Graham MclInnes
Chairman of the audit committee

On behalf of the board | am pleased to present the audit
committee report for the year ended 30 April 2022,

Members of the audit committee

The audit committee has two members, each of whom 1s an
independent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of the
committee and John May s the other current member of the
committee. The group company secretary i1s at the disposal

of the committee to advise and assist bath of the members.

The executive chairman, the group finance director and a
representative of the group's external auditors are permitted to
attend meetings of the committee by invitation only. The committee
meets at least three t:mes a year, in accordance with its terms

of reference.

The committee’s terms of reference are availabla on the group’s
website. Its principal responsibilities are to review and discuss
governance, financial reperting and internal control and

rish management

Duties
During the year the committee discharged its responsibilities by:

« approving the external auditor's plan for the audit of the group's
annual financial statements, including key audit matters, key
risks, confirmatian of auditor independence and terms of
engagement and audit fees;

* reviewing the group's draft annual repart and accounts and the
external auditor's detailed audit completion report inctuding the
consideration of key audit matters and risks;

+ reviewing the group's half year and full year results
ANNOUNCEMEnts;

* reviewing the performance of the external auditor;

* reviewing the group's risk management process including
the group’s key risks and mitigaticns, and

s commissioning an external, independent review of certain
key risk areas and acting on the findings.

Role of the external auditor

The committee monitors the relationship with the external auditor,
Crowe, (0 ensure that auditor independence and objectivity are
maintained. Crowe has been the company’s auditor since 2021,
which followed a tender process. The commitree will keep under
review the need for ¢ further external tender. Any instruction

for Crowe to provide non-audit services to the group must be
approved in advance by the committee. No fees were payable

to Crowe for non-audit services during the year.
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Having reviewed the auditor's independence and performance,
the committee has concluded that these are effective and
recommends that Crowe be reappoirted at the next AGM.

Audit process

The auditor prepares an annual planning report for consideration
oy the committee, which details areas of audit focus and
anticipated key audit risks, together with the anticipated level

of materiality. This is reviewed and approved by the committee.
Following the audit, the auditar presented its findings to the
committee No significant areas of concern were raised by the
external auditor.

Internal audit

The committee has reviewed the group's processes for the review
and testing of its internal control framework, considering the size
and complexities of the group. It concluded that assurance on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls can be cbtained
through the group’s compliance and finance teams, supported
where necessary by external, indepenrdent review.

Internal controls and risk management

The systems of internal control and risk management are the
ultmate responsibility of the board, which sets and reviews
appropriate policies. The systems are designed to provide
reascnable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstaternent or loss Managers are delegated the tasks of
implementation and mantenance of systems in accordance
with those policies and the identification, evaluation,
management and reporting of risk and control issues

Controls and processes are reviewed on a periedic basis by
the group's finance and compliance teams with any 1ssues
and recommendations reported to the audit committee.

Budgets are produced annually and key performance targets
within them are set by the board. Performance agamnst those
budgets is regularly reviewed and variances are investigated
and acted upon by members of the board and both head office
and divisional managers.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the group, together

with mitigating activities, are disclosed in the strategic report
onpages 2210 24.

Graham MclInnes
Chairman of the audit committee
18 July 2022
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Remuneration
committee report

John May

Chairman of the remuneration committee

| am pleased to present this remuneration report, which sets out
the remuneration policy and the remuneration paid to the
directors for the year.

Members of the remuneration committee

The remuneration commitiee has three members, each of whom is
an independent, non-executive director. | am the chairman of the
committee and Graham Mcinnes and Mark Stupples are the other
current members of the committee. The group company secretary
15 at the disposal of the committee to advise and assist the members.

The executive charrman is invited to attend meetings of the
committee for discussion on executive remuneration matters save
for those relating to himself. The committee meets at least once a
year, in accordance with its terms of reference.

The committee’s terms of reference are avadable on the group’s
website. Its principal respansibilities are to determine the
remuneration payable to the executive directors and approve
any management long-term incentive and share-based
payment schemes

Policy
The remuneration policy of the group is driven by our approach
10 align the best interests of shareholders and management.

The committee looks to set remuneration for executive directors
at appropnate market levels, with reference to the reles and
responsibilities of those directors Incentive arrangements which
provide appropriate reward and incentive are implemented and
measured aganst key performance criteria designed to promote
the best interests of shareholders and are reviewed annually.

Financial statements

Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration arrangements for the three executive directors
consist of a basic salary or directors’ fees and fixed profit share,
together with an annual bonus, in addition, they receive incomie
protection insurance, private medical insurance and the provision
of a company car or cash allowance. Nick Taylor also recaives death
in service benefits.

The executive bonus scheme pays a percentage of salary/fixed
profit share based on maintaining or growing the group’s adjusted
earnings per share in the year, with a maximum bonus of 100% of
base safary payable for earnings growth of at least 40%. The bonus
payable in the year s d'sclosed in the table of directors’ emoluments.

In the prior year Mark Fry's remuneratien consisted of a fully
vanatle profit share, determined as a proportion of the profits of
Begbies Traynor (Londan} LLP ('the LLP’), a subsidiary of the group.
In addition he recewved a fixed director’s fee and the provision of a
company car

None of the directors participate in the group’s defined
contribution pension scheme

Long-term incentive plans

The long-term incentive plansin place for Nick Tayler and Mark Fry
seek to incentivise them to enhance shareholder value. Performance
critena for the full award of the performance share plan 2020
require total shareholder return equal or exceeding the median
position of the FTSE AlM All Share Index over the three year period,
and growth in adjusted earnings per share of 20% CAGR over the
three year period.

Non-executive directors
Non-executive directors’ remuneration Is determined by the board.
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Remuneration committee report continued

Directors’ emoluments
Directors’
feas and profe 2022 Fixed Variable
shareisalary 300U Benefits total pan ray
Narne aof director £ £ £ £ E £
Executive
Ric Traynor 346,625 310,500 21,253 678,378 367,878 310,500
Nick Taylor 214,000 188,000 778 407,778 219778 1R& 000
Mark Fry 448,800 391,000 15,856 855,656 464,656 391,000
Non-executive
John May 40,000 — — 40,000 40,000 —
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 — 4,636 44,636 44636 —
Mark Stupples 40,000 - — 490,000 40,000 —
Feter Wallgvist 40,000 — — 40,000 40,000 —
Aggregate emoluments 1,174,425 883,500 42,523 2,106,448 1,216,948 889,500
Directors
‘eesard profl Varable 2321 Fixed Variabie
share/salary profitsnare Bonus Benefi's total pay Eay
Name of director £ £ £ £ £ F £
Executive
Ric Traynor 330,521 — 236,000 21,612 588,123 352,133 236,000
Nick Taytor 219,000 — 182,000 830 401,880 219,880 182,000
Mark Fry 15,000 665,000 — — 680,000 15,000 665,000
Non-executive
John May 40,000 —_ — e 40,060 40,000 —
Graham Mclnnes 40,000 — — 5,276 45,276 45276 —
Mark Stupples 40,000 — — - 40.000 40,000 —
Peter Wallgvist 40,000 — — — 40,000 40,000 —
Aggregate emoluments 724,521 665,000 418,000 27,768 1,835,289 752,289 1,083,000

Directors’ share options

Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do not include any amounts for the value of options to acquire ordinary shares in the company
granted to or held by the directors. Details of share options held by directors who served during the year are as follows:

Exercise
NLmber a2 Exeroised Number at price Firstvesting
Name of director Scheme 1 Way 2021 1year 30 April 2022 (pence) date
Mark Fry Share option scheme 2013 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 267 30 Aprit 2016
Performance share plan 2020 250,000 — 250,000 5.0 31 july 2023
Nick Tayior Share opticn scheme 2014 250,000 (250,000} — 510 25 July 2017
Share option scheme 2017 476,300 (60,000 416,300 63.1 30 Apnit 2020
SAYE 2018 15,203 {15,203} — 59.0 1 January 2022
Performance share plan 2020 250,000 — 250,000 50 31 july 2023

The market price of the company's shares at the end of the financial year was 118p and the range of market prices during the year

was 100p to 149p

Details of share options granted by the company at 30 April 2022 are given in note 22. None of the terms and conditions of the share

options were varied in the year
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Directors’ interests

The directors who held office at 30 April 2022 had the foliowing interests in the shares of the group.

30 April 2022 30 Aprit 2041

Narre of Girector Cese plion of shares number % urrker %
Ric Traynor Crdinary shares 27,178,980 17.72 27178980 18 00
Nick Taylor Ordinary shares 200,238 0.13 136.240 0.09
Mark Fry Ordinary shares 661,610 0.43 734,390 0.49
John May Crdinary shares 343,976 0.22 343,976 0.23
Graham Mclnnes Ordinary shares 917,432 0.60 917,432 061
Mark Stupples Ordinary shares 30,727 0.02 30,727 0.0z
Peter Wallgvist Ordinary shares 30,000 0.02 30,000 0.02
Mo changes took place 1n the interests of directors between 30 April 2022 and 18 July 2022
John May
Chairman of the remuneration committee
18 July 2022
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Directors’ report

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the
group, together with the financial staternents and auditor's report
for the year ended 30 April 2022, The chairman’s statement,
strategic report, directors’ remuneration report and corporate
governance staterment form part of the directors' report and are
Incorperated into it by cross-reference.

The stakeholder engagement section of the strategic report
contains informaton in respect of the group's key stakeholders
and business relationships, including employees, clients,
shareholders, and the community and environment,

Directors
The names and brief biographical details of the directors
are shown on page 26.

Risks and uncertainties
The principal business risks and uncertainties to which the company
15 exposed are detalled on page 22 of the strategic report

Dividends

The directars reccmmend a final dradend of 2.4p (2021, 2.0p per
ordinary share} to be paid on 3 November 2022 to shareholders
an the register on 7 October 2022. This, together with the interim
dividend of 1.1p paid on 6 May 2022 (2021 1.0p), makes a total
dividend of 3.5p for the year (2021: 3.0p).

Substantial shareholdings

On 8 July 2022, the company had been notified, in accordance with
sections 791 to 828 of the Companies Act 2006, of the following
interests in the ordimary share capital of the company:

Perrentage
Name of holder NuToer held
Amati Global Investors 11,311,005 735
Close Brothers Asset Management 11,008,126 716
OVMK Vermogensbeheer 6,579,666 428
Slater Investments 6,097,548 397
River and Mercantile Asset Management 6,000,000 380
Gresham House Asset Management 5,626,933 366

Other than the above holdings and those of the directors (see page 33),
the board 1s not aware of any beneficial holdings in excess of 3%
of the issued share capital of the company.

financial instruments

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the group
are shown in note 20.
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Capital structure
Derails of the :ssued share capital, together with details of the
rmovements in share capital during the year, are shown 1n note 21.

Political donations
The company made no political donations during the year.

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always
fuily considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant
concerned In the event of members of staff becoming disabled,
every effort 1s made to ensure that their empfoymentwith the
group continues and that appropriate traming is arranged. It is
the policy of the group that the training, career development
and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible,
be identical to that of other employees.

Greenhouse gas (‘GHG’) emissions statement
Details of the group's GHG emissions for the year are detailed
on page 19 of the strategic report.

Employees

The policy of the group is to recruit, promote, train and develop its
people by reference to their skills, abilities and other attributes of
value to their role in the business. The group considers itself to be
an equal opportunities employer.

For details on employee engagement refer to stakeholder
engagement In the strategic report on pages 16 and 20.

Auditor
Each of the directors at the date of approval of this annual report
confirms that

* 5o far as the director is aware, there is ng relevant audit
information (as defined in the Companies Act 2006) of which
the company's auditor is unaware; and

» the director has taken afl the steps that he ought to have taken
as a director in order to make himseif aware of any relevant
audit information and tc establish that the company's auditor
is aware of thatinformation

in accordance with section 482 of the Companies Act 2006, a
resolution will be proposad at the annuai general meeting that
Crowe UK. LLP be reappointed as auditors.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on behalf of the board

John Humphrey
Company secretary
18 July 2022
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Directors’ responsibilities statement

The direclors are responsible for precaring the annual report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable faw
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year, Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the group financial statements in
accordance with UK-adopted internatonal accounting standards
and the company financial statements 0 accordance vath Urited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law the
directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the
group for that period. The directors are also reguired to prepare
financial statements in accordance with the rules of the Londen
Stock Exchange for companies trading securities on AlM,

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to’

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

¢ make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

o state whether they have heen prepared in accordance with
UK-adopted international accounting standards, subject to any
material departures disciosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

« prepare the financial stataments on the going concern basis
unless itis Inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactigns and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Website publication

The directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report and
the financial statements are made available on a website. Financial
statements are published on the company's website in accordance
with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of finarcial statements, which may vary from
legislation in other jurisdictions. The maintenance and integrity

of the company’s website 1s the responsibility of the dicectors.

Thie directors’ raspansibility also extends ta the ongomg integrity
of the financial statements contained therein,
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of Begbies Traynor Group plc

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Beghies Traynor Group ple {the "Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries (the "Group’)
for the year ended 30 April 2022 which comprise;

* the Group income statement and statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 April 2022,
s tne Group and parent company statements of financial position as at 30 April 2022;

e the Group statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ the Group and parent company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial staternents, including a summary of significant accounting policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements 15 applicable law and UK
adopted International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. The financial reporting
framewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and Urnited Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland (United Kingdom Generalty Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion.

v the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 30 April 2022
and of the Group's loss for the period then ended;

» the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accerdance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards;

s the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

o the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further daescribed in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of aur report.
We are independent of the Group in accardance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 0° the financial statements in
the UK, including the FRC's Fthical Standard as applied to bsted entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements. We pelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In suditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparaton
of the financial statements is appropriate. Qur evaluation of the Directors' assessment of the Group and Company's ability to continue to
adapt the going concern basis of accounting included obtaining and reviewing management's assessment of going coencern This invalved
gaining an understanding of management’s basis for the identification of events or conditians that may cast a significant doubt on the
abdity of the Group to continue as @ going concern, and whether a material uncertainty related to going concern exists.

Furthermore, we performed specific audit precedures around going concern; whereby we obtained and reviewed actual financial results
against budgeted resuits, assessed the reasonableness of budgets and forecasts for successive finandial years, evaluated the feasibility of
management's plans in respect of going concern as well as considered whether new facts or information have become avaitable since
management made their assessment

We also considered explicitly whether there was any evidence of management bias in the preparat.on of the going concern assessment.
Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating 1o events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are descrived in the relevant sections of this report.
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Overview of our audit approach

Materiality

in plarning and perfarming our audit we applied the concept of materiality. An item is considered material if it could reascnably be
expected to change the economic decisions of a user of the financial statements. We used the concent of materiality to both focus
our testung and to evaluate the impact of misstatements idenufied.

We use a different level of materiality {'performance materiality’) to determine the extent of cur testing for the audit of the financial
statements Performance materiality is set based on the audit materiality as adjusted for the judgements made as ta the entity risk
and our evatuation of the specific risk of each audit area having regard to the internal control environment.

Where cansidered appropriate perfarmance materiality may be reduced to a lower level, such as, for related party transactions
and directors’ remuneration.

Group materiality £800,000

Group performance materiality £560,000

Parent Company materiality £600,000

Parent Company performance materiality £420,000

Basis for Group materiality 5% of adjusted profit before tax.

Basis for Parent Company materiality Based on net assets and restricted to 75% of Group materiality

Rationale for the benchmark adopted Begbies Traynor Group plcis AIM listed, with profit making intentions and significant

investors external to the Group, Adjusted profit is considered to be the key KPI for the
Group and as such a profit-based materiality basis is considered appropriate. We
adjusted for amortisation and transaction ¢osts as these costs do not specifically
relate to any undertying operating activities and are in line with the Directors’ KPIs.
The adjusted figure gives a more appropriate basis inline with a benchmark used

for business decision making and used by the investor/shareholder community.

we agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the committee all individual audit differences identified during the course
of our audit in excess of £40,000. We also agreed to report differences below these thresholds that, in our view, were warranted on
qualitative grounds.

Overview of the scope of cur audit
Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls,
and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

For the six significant components we identified, we performed a full scope audit of the complete financial information. For the remaining
components, we performed analytical reviews and other audit procedures on specific accounts within that camponent that we constdered
had the potential for the greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements, either because of the size of these accounts
or their risk profile.

Audits of the components were performed at a materiality level calculated by referance to a proportion of Group materiality appropriate
to the relative scale of the business concerned.

The group audit team conducted the audit of alf components of the business and no companent auditors were used during the audit process

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financal statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement {whetner or not due to fraud) that we
identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on' the overall audit strategy, the allocatian of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

This is not a coreplete hst of all risks identified by our audit
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Begbies Traynor Group plc

Overview of our audit approach continued
Key Audit Matters continued

Key audit matter

Carrying value of goodwill

Refer to note 2(d) {accounung policy}, and note 11
{Intangible assets).

The Group carries a value of shghtly over £6G millicn
for goodwill in the balance sheet at the year end.

This is material to the group and the assessment of its
recoverability performed by management invalves the
application of a number of judgements and estimates
which therefore holds the potential for bias or error.

In accordance with {AS 36, an annual impairment review
of goodwili (see note 11} 15 required at each year end.

The Group's goodwill measurement and valuation policy
Is set out In note 2 of these financial statements, with a
summary of goodwll set out on page 59

Management prepared impairment calculations based
on the forecasts of the insolvency cash-generating unit
{CGU), to which all the goodwill belongs. They also
appiied sensitivity analysis to the assumptions usedin
the calculations, as set out in note 11 Management's
assessment found significant headroom and concluded
no impairment was reguired

Due to the potential significance and subjectivity of the
above judgements to the group this 1s deemed to be a
key audit matter

How the scope of our audit addressed the key audit matter

We assessed the methadology applied by management to ensure
comsistency with prior year calculations.

We evaluated the allocation of goodwill to ensure 1t was correcthy
allocated to the insolvency CGU.

We checked the assumpticns used within the forecast figures for the
insalvency CGU. We compared these to the actual results of this CGU in
the financial year ended 30 Apnil 2022, investigating and challenging
management on any unusual or significant movements expected going
forward based on our understanding of the business. We also checked
for consistency with the forecasts used In the going concern assessment.

We also assessed the key assumptions made within the calculation. The
key assumgticns are considered to be the weighted average cost of capital
(WACC), the growth rate applied to the calculat'ons and the economic
cycles assumed in the model (based on recent trends in numbers of
entities on the register and liguidation rates) as this drives the forecast
future sales volumes for the insolvency practice, which is counter-cyclical
to the general economic environment in the Uk,

We engaged the use of an auditor's expert to consider the appropriateness
of managerment's WACC estimate, and whether it was reasonable for use in
this calculation.

We tested the sensitivity calcutations to the key assumptions to consider
the headroom available

Revenue and unbilled income recognition

Refer to note 2(k) (accounting policy). notes 3 and 4
{Revenue), and note 14 (Unbilled income).

In line with auditing standards, there is a presumed
significant risk of fraud in relation to revenue recogninion
We have considered the application of the Group revenue
recognition policies and determined that the significant risk
inthe period is that of the overstatement of unbilled income
recorded using stage of completion calculations at year end
through the manipulation of provisions for unrecoverable
amounts. As noted in the accounting policies (note 2 {r)),
judgements are formed over a large portfolio of cases
meaning individual judgements are not material; however,
as a result of the large number of insolvency cases being
handled by the Group, the aggregate balance of unbilled
income is significant As a result of the significant level of
estimation involved 1n the balance there 1s potential for
material misstatement and significant audit work was
performed in this area.

We tested the operating effectiveness of a key control to ensure that there 15
sufficient challenge placed by the group finance team on moenthly unbilled
income estimates and judgements, including provisions Group finance
review and challenge that key estmates and provisions against unbilled
income are appropriately calculated, each quarter, by indrnadual insolvency
practitioners and fee earners. We have attended a sample of monthly
finance review meetings and observed the Jevel of challenge and follow-up of
individual cases, which provides assurance over the internal controbin place.

A sample of year end unhilled income balances were tested through
questionnaires being issued to the fee earners and then reviewing their
responses and associated evidence, e.g. creditors’ resolutions, property
valuations and balances held in bank accounts, against the year-end
position set out. This included guestions on the impact of COVID-19

on realisations and asset values held for the case.

We reperformed the stage of complenion calculatuons as at year end for a
sample of cases and robustly challenged the judgements and estimates
made by management in relation to the status of cases by looking at the
costs to complete for each of the cases We also challenged recoverability
of the fees by looking at the value of assets held within each of the cases
which supported the fee estimate.

We also reviewed the unbilled revenue estimates made in the prior year
in relation to their recovery for a sample of cases and assessed therr
accuracy based on actual outcomes

We performed a high-level review of the ageing of year end unbilled
income, to evaluate movements in ageing Trom the prier year and confirm
the ageing profile is in line with cur understanding of the business.
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Other information

The directors are respensible for the other information contamed within the annual report. The other infermation comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the
financial staterments does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explictly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion therean.

QOur responsibility is to read the other information and, in daing so, consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a matenal
misstaternent in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repart that fact,

We have nothing to reportin this regard.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit.

* the informaticn given In the strategic report and the directors’ report for the finandial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

s the strategic report and directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Inlight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstaternents in the strategic report or the directors’ report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If, in our opinion:

» adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting reccrds and returns, or
¢ certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibidities statement set out on page 35, the directors are respansible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine
15 necessary Lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staternents, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and parent company’s ability te continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend 10 liguidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no reafistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due 1o fraud or error, and to 1ssue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I5As (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of thase financial statements.

irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations We design procedures in ine with our
respansibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregulanties, including fraud The extent to which
our procedures are capable of detecung irregularities, including fraud 1s detaited below:

We obtaned an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks within which the Group and Parent Company operates. We also
considered and obtained an understanding of the UK legal and regulatory framework which we considered in this context were the
Companies Act 2006 and UK taxation legislation,

We identified the greatest risk of matenial impact on the financial statements from irregulanities, including fraud, to be the override
of cantrols by management Our audit precedures to respond to these risks included enguiries of management about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities, and sample testing on the posting of journals. We reviewed and challenged
acceunting estimates and assumptions used by management for the valuation of goodwill, iIntangible assets and unbilled revenue, i
order to verify that the calculations and models were reasonable and free of biases.
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Independent auditor’s report continued

to the members of Begbies Traynar Group plc

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements continued

Owing to the inherent imitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material misstaternents in
the financial statements, even thaugh we have properly planned and performad our auditin accordance with audiuing standards We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all faws and regulations.

These inherent imitations are particularly significant in the case of misstatement resulting from fraud as this may involve sophisticated
schemes designed to avoid detectian, including defiberate fallure to record transactions, collusion or the provsion of intenticnat
misrepresentaons

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc org uk/
auditorsresponsibilities This description forms part of cur auditor's report.

Use of our report

This repert is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other purpaose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
cther than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Michael Jayson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of

Crowe UK. LLP

Statutory Auditor

Manchester

18 July 2022
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 April 2022

2022 2021
Nistes £000 £000
Revenue 3 110,002 3383
Direct costs {62,167) {48,281}
Gross profit 47,835 35,550
Other cperating income 155 179
Administrative expenses (43,106) {32,939)
Operating profit (before amortisation and transaction costs) 18,594 12,394
Transaction costs 5 (8,224) {6,546)
Amortisation of intangible assets arsing on acquisitions (5,486) {3.058)
Operating profit 4,884 2,790
Finance ¢costs 7 (835) (883)
Profit before tax 4,049 1,907
Tax (before one-off deferred tax charge) (2,732) (1,754)
Deferred tax charge due to change in tax rate 8 (1.817) —
{Loss) profit and total comprehensive income for the year (500) 153
(Loss} earnings per share
Basic and diluted 10 {0.3)p 0.1p
The profit, comprehensive income and earnings per share 15 attributable to equity holders of the parent
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 April 2022

Capical

Share Snare Merger redemption Retained Total

capital orerium 1eser ¥ eRCIVE earnirgs equIty

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
AL T May 2020 £,386 29,459 23,927 304 5,495 65,571
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — - 153 153
Dividends —_ — — — (3.579) 13,579)
Transfer from share premium account — (20.000) — — 30,000 —
Credit to equity for equity-settied
share-based payments — — — — 1.037 1,031
Shares issued as consideration
for acquisitions 95 — 1,805 — — 2,000
Shares issued as deferred consideration 8 — 142 — — 150
Placing shares issued 1,043 19,852 — — — 20.895
Shares issued for share-based payments 15 14 —_ — — 29
AL 30 April 2021 7,547 28,325 25974 304 23100 86,250
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — (500 (500)
Dividends — — _ — {4,.553) 14.553)
Credit to equity for equity-settled
share-based payments — — — — 1,544 1,544
Shares issued as consideraticn
for acquisitions 52 — 1,198 — — 1.250
Shares issued for share-based payments 72 462 — — — 534
At 30 April 2022 7,671 29,787 27172 304 19,591 84,525

A description of the nature and purpose of each reserve 1s included within note 29.
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Consolidated balance sheet

at 30 April 2022

Restated
2022 2021
MNotes £000 EO0O
Non-current assets
Intangible assets " 75,307 77887
Property, plant and equipment 12 1,967 2,069
Right of use assets 13 5,492 7502
Trade and cother receivables 14 4,175 3,970
86,941 91,428
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 14 49,666 44,856
Cash and cash equivalents 9,685 7986
59,351 52,842
Total assets 146,292 144,270
Current liabilities
Trade and cther payables 15 {37,163) (32.884)
Current tax liabilties {(1,767) (2,612)
Lease habilities 16 {(1,747) {2,975)
Provisions 18 (1,474) (566)
(42,151) (39,037)
Net current assets 17,200 13,805
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 17 (5,000) {5.000)
Lease liabilities 16 (4,588) (5.846)
Provisions 18 (1,892) (2.609)
Deferred tax 19 (8,026) {5,528)
{19,616) (18,983)
Total liabilities (61,767) (58,020}
Net assets 84,525 86,250
Equity
Share capital 2% 7,671 7547
Share premium 29,787 29,325
Merger reserve 27172 25974
Capital redemption reserve 304 304
Retained earmings 19,51 23,100
Equity attributable to owners of the company 84,525 26,250
The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group ple, registered number 5120043, were approved by the board of directors
and authorised forissue on 18 July 2022, They were signed on its behalf by:
Ric Traynor Nick Taylor
Executive chairman Group finance director
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Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 April 2022

2022 2

Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated by operations 24 14,235 16,162
Income taxes paid (3,621) {2,273)
Interest paid on borrowings {328) (342)
Interest paid on lease liabilities {460) (506)
Net cash from operating activities (before deemed remuneration payments) 18,096 16,236
Deemed remuneration payments 23 (8,270} (3,195}
Net cash from operating activities 9,826 13,041
investing activities
Purchase of intangble fixed assets 1 (188) (307)
Purchase of property, ptant and equipment 12 (876) (957)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 40 —
Acquisition of businesses 23 (250) (22,033)
Deferred consideration payments 23 (36) (190)
Cash acquired in acquisition of businesses 23 397 1,522
Net cash used in investing activities (813} (21,965)
Financing activities
Dradends paid 9 (4,553) {3.579)
Proceeds on issue of shares 504 20,923
Capital element of lease payments (3,165) (2,681)
Repayment of loans —_ (5,000)
Net cash used in financing activities {(7,214) 3,663
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,699 739
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 7,986 7,247
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 9,685 79856
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

for the year ended 30 April 2022

1. General information
Beghies Traynor Group plcis a company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006, The address of the
registered office is 340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterhing because that 1s the currency of the prmary econamic environment
in which the group operates

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

{a) Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards ('IAS'y in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and UK-adopted AS.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and all accounting policies have been applied consistently
throughout the current and preceding year.

Going concern

The group’s business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set outin
the chairman’s statement and strategic report. The financial position of the group, the principal risks arnd uncertainties, its cash flows,
liquidity position and borrowing facilities are described in the strategic report

Furthermore, notes 17 and 20 10 the financial statements include full details of the group’s borrowings, in addition to the group's objectives
and pelicies for managing 1ts capital, its financial risk management objectives and its exposures to credit, interest rate and liquidity risk,

At the year end the group had cash balances of £9 7m (2021 £8 Orm) together with undrawn, committed borrowing facilities of £20.0m
{2021 £20.0m} providing significant iguidity entering the new financial year.

Incarrying out their duties in respect of going concern, the directors have completed a review of the group’s current financial position
and cash flow forecasts for a penod of two years from the year end This review included sensitivity analysis and stress tests to determine
the patential impact on the group of reascnably possible downside scenarios. Under all modelled scenarios, the group's banking faciiities
were sufficient and all associated covenant measures were forecast to e met.

As a result, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resocurces ta continue in
operaticnal existence for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual
report and accounts,

Adjusted performance measures

Management believes that adjusted performance measures provide meaningful information to the users of the accounts on the
operating performance of the business and are the performance measures used by the board to monitor operational performance and
determine remuneration levels including bonuses) for executives and senior management. Accordingly, adjusted measures of opéraung
orofit, profit before tax, net cash from operating activities and earmings per share exclude, where applicable, transaction costs,
amorfisation of Intangible assets ansing on acquisitions and related tax effects on these items. These terms are not defined terms under
UK-adopted international accounung standards, and may therefore not be comparable with similariy titied profit measures reported by
other companies. They are not Intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, GAAP measures.

The items excluded from adjusted results are those which arise due to acquisitions and are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in accordance with IFRS 3. They are not influenced by the day-te-day operations of the group

{b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of Beghies Traynor Group pic and entities controlled by
Begbies Traynor Group plc (its subsidiaries, which include limited hability partnerships). Control 1s achieved if all three of the foliowing are
achieved: power over the investee, exposure o variable returns for the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to affect
those variable returns

The rasults of subsidianies are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The results of entities acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective date of acquisition or up 1o the effective date of disposal, as appropriate

Where necessary, the accounts of the subsidiaries are adjusted to conform to the group's accounting policies. All intra-group
transactions, balances, ingome and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2022

2. Accounting policies continued

{c) Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries and businesses s accounted for using the acquisition method. The definition of a business combination
was revised by the amendment to |FRS 3, applicable to accounting periods starting 1 January 2020, and this amendment is applied by
the group when considering classification of acguisitions.

Measurement of consideration
The consideration far each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred to former owners and equity Instruments issued by the group in exchange for control of the acquiree

Contingent consideraton s initially measured at fair value at the data of the business combination. Any subsequent adjustment ta this
fair value {such as meeting an earnings target), where the consideration Is payable In cash, is recognised in the consaolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Deemed remuneration
In accordance with the IFRS Interpretations Committee’s interpretation of paragraph B55 of {FRS 3, the cost of the business combination
excludes consideration which requires post-acquisition service obligations to be performed by the selling shareholders

These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration and are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
over the period of the service abligation.

Payrrents paid in advance of the service obligation being delivered are recognised as an asset within trade and other receivables. The
balance is disclosed within current assets for service obligations in less than 12 manths and in non-current assets for service obligations
after more than 12 months. In the event that the service abligations have been delivered in advance of the payment being made, the
resultant liability is recognised within trade and ather payables. Deemed remuneration payments are disclosed within cash flows frem
operating activities within the cash flow statement.

Fair value assessment

Id=ntifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent abiliues assumed in a business combination are measured iniually at thair fair
values at the acquisition date. Where the fair value of the assets and liatulities at acquisition cannot be determined reliably in the imitial
accounting, these values are considered to be provisional for a period of 12 months from the date of acquisiuon. If additional infermation
relating to the condition of these assets and liabiliues at the acquisition date is obtained within this period, then the provisional values are
adjusted retrospectively. This includes the restatemeant of comparative infarmation for prior periods

Gain on acquisition or goodwill

A gain on acquisition arises where the group's interest In the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, habiities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination. This typically anses where there are post-acquisition service obhgations in
relation to the contractual constderation payments which results in these payments being excluded from consideration under IFRS 3.

A gain on acquisition is reccgnised iImmediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within transaction costs.

Goodwill arises where the cost of the business combination exceeds the group’s interest in the net farr value of the identifiable assets,
liabifities and contingent Labilities recogrised. This is recognised as an asset and 1s subject to impairment tests as noted N note 11,

Acquisition costs
Acquisition costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as incurred and separately disclosed due to
the nature of this expense.
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2. Accounting policies continued

{d} Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation 1s recognised as an asset,

Following initial recognition, goodwill 15 subject to impairment reviews, at least annually, and measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Any impairment 15 recognised immediately in the consolidated statermnent of comprehensive income and is not
subseguently reversed

On disposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill is included i the determination of the gain or loss on disposal

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of the group’s transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAF amounts,
subject to being tested for impairment at that date and at least annually thereafter,

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets are measured initially at cost and are amortised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful lives.
The carrying amount is reduced by any provision for impairment where necessary.

On a business combination, as well as recording separable intangible assets already recognised in the balance sheet of the acquired
entity at their fair value, identifiable irtangible assets that are separable or anise from contractual or other legal rights are also included
in the acquisition balance sheet at fair value.

Amortisation is charged within administrative expenses n the consolidated statement of comprehensive income so as to write off
the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful ives, on the following basis:

Software 10%-33% of cost
Intangible assets arising on acquisitions 10%-50% of fair value at acquisition

(e) Property, plant and equipment
All assets are stated at hustorical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses

Depreciation 1s charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, on the following basis

Computers 20%-33% of cost

Motor vehicles 25% on a reducing baiance basis
Office equipment 15%-25% of cost

Leasehold improvements evenly over period of fease

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference betwean the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised within profit or loss for the perind
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2. Accounting policies continued

{f) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

AT each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of iIts tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the assetis
estumated in order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent
from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating urit (CGU') to which the asset belongs

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value In use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted Lo Lhelr presentvalue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the ume valug and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estrnates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) 1s estimated to be less than its carrying amaount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU)
s reduced to its recoverable amount Animpairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, tha carrying amount of the asset {or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amaount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
noimpairment loss been recagnised for the asset {or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as income immediately

{g) Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised in the group's balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and on-demand depaosits and other short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subyect to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other receivables {excluding unbilled income and deemed remuneration)
Trade recevables are initially recognised at their transaction price, and then subsequently stated at amortsed cost less impairment
prawision for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The group applies the simphfied approach to providing for expected credit losses (ECLS) under IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
Iifetime expected loss provision far trade receivables. The group makes specific provisions for lifetime expected credit losses against
trade receivables where additional information is known regarding the recoverability of those balances. For the remaining trade
receivables balances, the group has established an ECL model using provision matnces for recognising ECLs on its trade receivables,
based on its historical credit loss expenence over a two year period, adjusted (where appropriate) for forward-ooking factars.

Trade receivables are written off where there s no expectation of recovery.

Other receivables are stated at their fair value

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially stated at therr fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity Instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets cof the group after deducting all of its habilities

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Bank borrowings

Interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds receved, net of directissue costs Finance charges, incuding
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are accounted for on an amortised cost basis to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise.
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2. Accounting policies continued

{h) Provisions

Provisicns are recognised when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that the
group will be required te settie the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated

(i) Professional indemnity insurance claims

Insurance cover is maintained in respect of professional negligence claims. There 1s judgement in the recognition and quanaficaton of the lability
associated with claims and regulatory proceedings. Recagnition 1s based on the assessed likelihood of an individual claim’s success. Where an
outflow 1s both probable and can be estimated reliably, a liability is recognised for the best estimate of the gross liability with a separate asset
recogrised for any portion that the group will recover fromits insurers. Where a payment is not probable or cannot be estimated reliably no liability
s recognised. Gross liability 1s recognised in other payables and the related asset Is recognised in other receivables

{j) Leases
The group enters into lease agreements for the use of bulldings, motor vehicles and office equipment.

Leases are accounted for at inception by recognising a right of use asset, lease habibty and dilapidations habhity.

The lease liability is measured at the present value of fixed payments urder the [ease. IFRS 16 reguires payments to be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. Where that rate cannot be readily determined, whichis generally the case for the group's leases, the
group's incremental borrowing rate is used. being the rate that the group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of simitar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

The initial value of the right of use asset is the present value of the fixed payments under the lease, any initial direct costs and an estimate
of dilapidation costs under the terms of the jease Depreciation of the right of use asset is recegnised in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
assel's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Lease liabllities increase as a result of the finance cost charged to the income statement over the lease period, so as to produce a
constant pericdic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabitity for each period, and the habilities are reduced for fease
payments made. Lease payments are allocated between principal and interest cost.

The group has taken advantage of the exempuions avallable under IFRS 16 not to apply the recognition and requirements of the standard to leases
with a term of 12 months or less, or leases for which the underlying asset value is low. For these leases, a charge is recognised in the income
staternent based on straight-line recognition of the lease payments payable on each lease, after adjustment for lease incentives received.

The group semetimes negotiates break clauses in its property leases, with the typical factor in deciding to negotiate a break clause being
the length of the lease term. The carrying amounts of lease lialilities are not reduced by payments that would be avoided from exercising
break clauses because, as at the point of lease inception, it was considered reasonably certain that the group would net exercise its nght
to exercise any break in the lease.

(k) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control of a service or product provided by the group is transferred to the customer, in ine with the group's
performance obhgations in the contract, and at an amount reflecting the cansideration the group expects to receive in exchange for the
service or product.

There are no significant jJudgements required in determining the group’s performance obligations in its contracts as the significant
majority of contracts contain only one performance obligation.

The group recognises revenue fram the following activities:
* insclvency and advisory services;

* corporate finance services and finance broking;

e commercial proparty management,

s property cansultancy services; and

s comrmercial property and other business asset disposals.
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2. Accounting policies continued

{k) Revenue recognition continued

Insolvency and advisory services

For the groug's formal insolvency appointments and other advisory engagements, where remuneration is typically determined based on
hours worked by professional partners and staff, the group transfers control of its services over time and recognises revenue over time |f
the group:

+ provides services for which it has no alternative use or means of deriving value; and

¢ has an enforceable right to payment for its performance completed to date, and for formal insolvency appomtments has approvat
from creditors to draw fees which will be paid from asset reahisations

Gn ceriain cantracts the group may not have enforceable rights to payment at the start of the contract and revenue will not be
recognised untii these rights are in place. This may accur on insolvency appointments where the recovery of assets is subject to Iitigation
or the realisation of assets is uncertain,

Progress on each assignment s measured using an input method based on costs incurred to date as a percentage of total anticipated costs

In determining the amaount of revenue and the relatad balance sheet items (such as trade receivanles, unbilied income and deferred
income) to reccgnise in the period, management is required to form a judgement on each individual contract of the total expected fees
and totai anticipated costs.

These estimates and Judgements may change over time as the engagement completes and this will be recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the revision becomes knawn. These judgements are formed over 2 large
portfolio of contracts and are therefore unlikely to be individually material.

Invarces on formal insolvency appointments are generally raised having achisved approval from creditors to draw fees. This is typically
settled on a imely basis from case funds. Or advisory engagements, invoices are generally raised in line with contract terms.

Where revenue is recognised in advance of the invoice being raised (in ine with the recognition criteria above) this is disclosed as unbilled
income within trade and other receivables, Where an invoice is raised in advance of the revenue being recognised, this is disclosed as
deferred income within trade and other payables.

Corporate finance services and finance broking
Generally, revenue 1s recognised at & point in time on the date of completion of the transaction or when unconditional contracts have been
exchanged Fees are typically a fixed percentage of the transaction value and are invoiced to the chent {and typically payable) on completion

Commercial property management

The group manages commercial properues for owners. The primary performance obligation relates to the ongoing management of the
praperty and revenue is recognised over ume on a straight-line bas:s as the services are performed in ine with the contractterms. The
majority of customers are invoiced guarterly in advance, with a deferred income balance recognised for services stifl to be delivered,

Property consultancy services

The group provides a wide range of professional property services including valuation, building cansultancy, planning and insurance
broking. Revenue will typically be recognised at a point in time following satisfaction of the perfermance obligation(s) in the contract,
at which point the group is typically entitled to invoice the customer, and payment will be due.

Asset disposals

The group is appointed to sell properties, businesses, machinery and other business assets for clients through physical and online
auctions, commercial property agency and business sales agency. Generally, revenue is recognised at a pointin time on the date of
completion of the asset sale or when unconditional contracts for the sale have been exchanged Fees are typically a fixed percentage
of the transaction value and are invoiced to the client (and typically payable) on completien.

Financing component

In line with IFRS 15, the group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component
if the group expects, at contract inception, that the period between the group transferring its product or services to a customer and
whien the customer pays will be one year or less
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2. Accounting policies continued
{l) Barrowing costs
Barrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred.

(m) Pensions and retirement benefits
The group operates a defined contribution scherre 1in the Urited Kingdom for all qualifying employees. The costs of the pension funding
borne by the group are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an expense as they fall due.

(n) Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value excludes
the effect of non-market-based vesung conditions. Detalls regarding the determinaticn of the fair value of equity-settled share-based
transactions are set gut innote 23,

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-ine basis over the
vesting period, based on the group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the group
revises Its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market-based vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to equity reserves,

{0) Dividends
Dividends ere recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is whan
they are pald to shareholders. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders al the AGM.

{p) Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax 1s based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net prefit as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group's lability for current tax s calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Deferred rax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temparary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deducuble temporary differences can be
utilsed. Such assets and liablilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses from goodwill or from the imtal recognimon (other
than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit ner the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it1s no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the assetis realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income except when it relates to items charged
or credited 1o equity, in which Case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set of f current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes by the same taxaton autherity and the group intends to settle 1ts current tax assets
and habilities on a net basis.

(q) Charge arising under Beghies Traynor London (LLP) put and call option
The hability to the group under this option (as detalled in note 2815 charged to the consclidated statement of comprehensive income
over the periad of the contractual obligatior, and included as a transacbion cost within administrative expenses.
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2. Accounting policies continued

(r) Critical accounting judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

Inthe process of applying the group's accouriting policies, the group is required to make certain astimates, judgements and assumptions
that it believes are reasonable based upon the information available. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reporied amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented.

On an ongoing basis, the group evaluates 1ts estimates using historical expenience, consultation with experts and other methods considered
reasonable in the particular circumstances, Actual results may differ from the esumates, the effect of which s recogrised in the period in
whitch the facts Ual give nse Lo the revision become knowrn,

The group believes that the estimates and judgements that have the st significant impact on the annual results under UK-adapted 1AS
are as set out below

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Goodwill

The group records all assets and habilities acquired in business combinations, including goodwill, at fair value. Goodwill is not amorused
butis subject, at a minimum, to annual tests for impairment. The initial goodwill recorded and subsequent impairment review require
management to make subjective judgements concerning the value in use of CGUs This requires an estimata of the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate to calculate present value Details of the assumptions made are provided
innote 11.

Other sources of estimation uncertainty

Intangible assets in a business combinaticn

On the acquisition of a business the identifiable intangible assets may include brands, customer relationships, customer contracts, order
backlogs and websites The fair value of thase assers is determined by discounting estimated future net cash flows generated by the asset
where no active market for the assert exists. The use of different assumptions for the expectations of future cash flows and the discount
rate would change the valuation of the intangible assets, with a resultant impact on the goodwill or gain on acquisition recognised. Details
in relation to current yasr acquisiticns are in note 23

Unbilled incame
As detailed in note 2(k), in determining the amount of revenue to recognise in the period, management is required to form an estimate
on each individual contract of the total expected fees and total anticipated costs.

These estimates may change over ime as the engagement completes. These estimates are formed over a large portfolio of cantracts
and are therefore unlikely to be individually material

Provisions and claims
As detaled in note 2(h) and (), there is judgementin the recognition and quantification of potential liabilities recognised as provisions and claims.

{s) Recently issued accounting pronouncements
UK-adopted IAS

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are no amended standards and interpretations issued by the UK
Endorsement Board that impact the group as they are either not relevant to the group's activities or require accounting which 1s
consistent with the group’s current accounting policies.
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2. Accounting policies continued

{t) Restatement of prior year financial statements

Financial statements

Adjustment to provisional accounting estimates under IFRS 3
The provisional estimates made in relation 1o acquisitions completed in the year ended 30 April 2021 were finalised during the year.
in accordance with 2 (c) above, provisional values are adjusted retrospectively and comparative infarmation is restated. See table

below for further details

Ad ustment (o
provisionat

Adjustmert e
provisianal

As reporied estimates or eslimaltes on [nstates
30 Apal 2021 CYRacauisitior  GRP arguisition 30 Apr | 2021
EOC0 £1000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
intangible assets 77637 (529 779 77887
Property, plant and equipment 2,069 — — 2,069
Right of use assets 7,502 — — 7502
Trade and other rece'vables 3870 s — 3,970
91,178 (529} 779 91,428
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 45,425 (124) {(445) 44,856
Cash and cash equivalents 7986 — — 7,986
53,411 (124} 1445} 52,842
Total assets 144,589 (653} 334 144,270
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {33,273) 751 (362) {32,884)
Current tax liabilities {2,612) - — (2,612)
Lease liabilites (2,975 — — (2.975)
Provisions (566) — — (566)
(39,426) 751 (362) (39,037)
Net current assets 13,985 627 (807) 13,805
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings {5,000) — — {5.000)
Lease habdities {5,846) — — (5,846)
Provisions (2,609 — — (2,609)
Deferred tax {5,458) (98) 28 (5,528)
(18,913) (58) 28 (18.983)
Total liabilities {58,339) 653 (334) (58.020)
Net assets 86,250 — — 86,250
Equity
Share capital 7,547 — — 7,547
Share premium 29,325 — — 29325
Merger reserve 25974 — — 25974
Capital redemption reserve 304 — — 304
Retained earnings 23300 — — 23,100
Equity attributable to owners of the company 86,250 — — 86,250

Annual report and accounts 2022 Begbies Traynor Group plc 53



Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements
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for the year ended 30 April 2022

3. Revenue

Revenue recognised in the year of £110.0m {2021 £83 8m) was exclusively from contracts with custormers recognised :n accordance
with IFRS 15, An analysis of revenue by nature of actuwity and recognition methed 1s detalled in note 4.

The contract balances recognised are:

Resratsd
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Contract assets
Trade receivables 9,066 3,215
Unbilled income 35,208 31,717
44,274 39932
Contract liabilities
Deferred income (5.611) 15,520}

The movement in contract assets in the year comprises. £1.4mincrease from acquisitions in the year and £2.9m increase due to organic
growth in the year. The mavement in contract liabilities in the year comprises £0.1m increase arising from formal insclvency appointments.

Revenue recognised in the year that was included in deferred income at the beginning of the year was £4.0m (2021 £2 4m).

For the group’s formal insolvency contracts, which are expected to be completed within three years, the aggregate amount of the overall
transacticn price which has been aliocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied at 30 April 2022 15 £22 5m {2027 £28.3m).

For other contracts, the group has taken the practical expedients available under [FRS 15 not to disclese any amounts relating to

contracts which had an expected duration of one year or less.

4. Segmental analysis

The group's operating segments are established on the basis of the components of the group that are evaluated regularly by the chief
operaring decision maker. The group is managed as two operating segments. business recovery and financial advisory services, and

property advisory and transacticnal services.

The performance of the group's operaung segments is assessed by the chief operating decision maker on the basis of revenue and
operating profit {before amortisation and transaction costs), which s presented below Revenue s presented by basis of recognit.on

and by service ling, in accordance with IFRS 15

Business
recovery and Property

financial advisory and Shared

advisory  transactional and central

services services CO5ts Consolidated

2022 2022 2022 2022
£000 E'000 £000 £000

Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professional services 81,383 28,649 — 110,032
Inter-segment revenue - (30) - (30)
Revenue from external customers 81,383 28,619 — 110,002
Qver ime 73.861 2,777 e 76,638
At a pointin time 7.522 25,842 — 33,364
Revenue from external customers by basis of recognition 81,383 28,619 — 110,002
Insolvency and advisory services 73,861 — — 73,861
Corporate finance and finance broking 7,522 - - 7,522
Commeraal property management - 2,777 — 2,777
Property consultancy services _ 15,975 _ 15,975
Commercial property, businesses and other asset disposals — 9,867 —_ 9,867
Revenue from external customers by service line 81,383 28,619 — 110,002
Operating profit before amortisation and transaction costs 21,002 4,841 {7,249) 18,594
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4. Segmental analysis continued

Financial staterments

Business
recovery and Preperty
financial advisary and Unallocated
advisory  transactional corporate
services services amounts  Consolidated
2022 2022 2022 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance sheet
Assets 121,923 14,684 9,685 146,292
Liabilitres (45,296) (9,704) {6,767) {61,767}
Net asserts 76,627 4,980 2,918 84,525
Unzllocated amounts include current tax kabilities, cash and borrowings
Bus ness
recovery and Property
firancial adwisory and shared
advisory transactional ard cenral
servires Sarv ces costs {onsalidated
2021 2021 207 2021
£000 £00n £000 £000
Revenue
Total revenue from rendering of professional services 59,697 24,140 — 83,837
Inter-segment revenue — {€) — &)
Revenue from external customers 59,697 24134 — 83,831
Overtime 54,613 2.56% - 57182
At apointintime 5,084 21,565 — 26,649
Revenue from external customers by basis of recogrition 59,697 24134 — 83.831
Insolvency and advisary services 54,613 — — 54,613
Corporate finance 5,084 — — 5084
Cemmercial property management -— 2,569 — 2,569
Property consultancy services — 12,683 — 12,683
Commercial property, businesses and other asset disposals — 8,882 — 8,882
Revenue from external customers by service line 59,697 24134 — 83,831
Qperating profit before amortisation and transaction costs 14,721 3,875 6,202) 12,384
Bus ness
recovery and Prooerty
finar:ial adv sory and Unallccated
adwisory trancactional corporate Restated
Services SErvIces aroLnts Consoldated
2031 2021 2051 2021
£G00 £O00 £000 £000
Balance sheet
Assets 124,122 12,162 7986 144,270
Liabilities {43,609} (6.799) {7.612) (58,020)
Net assels 80,513 5363 374 86,250

Geographical segments

The group's principal operations and markets are located in the UK,
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued
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5. {Loss) profit for the year

{Lossy profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

2022 202"
£000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 1,038 841
Depreciation of right of use assets 2,645 2617
Impairment of right of use asset (note 13) - 579
Reversal of impairment of right of use asset (note 13} - (228)
Armortisation of intangible assets 5,668 3180
Profit on disposal of praperty, plant and eguipment (10) —
Staff costs (note 6) 67,685 52,344
Short-term lease expense 880 490
Impairment of receivable balances {note 14) 306 1,022
Reversal of impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (note 14) {61) (38;
During the year, the group obtained the following services from the group's auditor, at the costs detailed below:
2022 2021
£000 £000
Fees payable to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 30 30
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates for other services to the group
- the audit of the company's subsidiaries pursuant to legisiation 100 105
Total audit fees 130 135
- other advisory services — 6
Total non-audit fees — 6
During the year, the group incurred transaction costs as detailed betow:
2022 202
£000 £000
Deemed remuneration 9,983 5,449
Acquisition costs 215 439
Gain on acqguisition {note 23) (1,974) {2313
Charge arising under Begbies Traynor London {LLP) put and call option {note 28) —_ 889
Total transaction costs 8,224 6,546
These transaction costs are all included within administrative expenses
6. Staff costs
The full time equivalent {FTE) number of partners and staff are disclosed wathin the finance review.
The average total number of partners and staff (including executive directors) working withun the group during each year was.
2022 2621
numher number
Partners 86 71
Staff 901 719
287 790
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6. Staff costs continued

Financial statements

2022 2021
£000 £000
Their aggregate remuneration compnsed:
Wages, salaries and partners' profit share 58,3384 45,872
Social security costs 4,614 3,208
Pension costs (note 27) 3,113 2,233
Share-based payments 1,574 1,031
67,685 52,344
Directors’ remuneration
2022 2021
£000 £000
Short-term benefits 2,106 1,835
Share-based payments 142 36
2,248 1,871
number number
The average number of directors who
Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a long-term incentive scheme 2 2
No directors participated in the group's defined contribution pension scheme during either year.
7. Finance costs
2022 2021
£000 £000
Interest on borrowings 375 377
Finance charge on lease hiabilities 335 441
Finance charge on dilapidation pravisions 75 65
Total finance costs 835 883
8. Tax
2022 2021
£000 £000
Total current tax charge 2,733 2,543
Deferred tax credit {note 19) (¢}] {789)
Impact of change in tax rate 1,817 —
Total deferred tax charge (credi) 1,816 (789)
Total income tax charge 4,549 1,754
Corporation tax is calculated at 1% {2021, 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
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8. Tax continued
The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the conselidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £200
Profit before tax 4,049 1,807
Notional tax charge at the UK corparation tax rate of 18% (2021: 19%) 769 362
MNon doduct:ble impact of transaction costs 1,545 1.257
Impact of change in tax rate on deferred tax balances 1,817 —
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 418 135
Total tax charge reported in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 4,549 1,754

The deferred tax charge of £1.8m results from an increase in deferred tax liabilities due to the cancellation of the previously enacted
reduction in the UK corporaton tax rate to 17%. The increase in rate from 19% to 25% was enacted on 24 May 2021

9. Dividends

2022 2021
£000 £:900
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2021 of 10p (2020: 0.9p) per share 1,509 1,149
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2021 of 2.0p (2020 1.90) per share 3,044 2,430
4,553 3,579
Amounts proposed as distributions to equity holders
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 April 2022 of 1.1p (2021: 1.0p) per share 1,687 1,509
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2022 of 2.4p (2021: 2 Op) per share 3,682 3,044
5,369 4,553

The praposed final dvidend is subject 1o approval by shareholders at the annual general meeting in September 2022, The interim
dividend for 2022 was paid on 6 May 2022 and, accordingly, has not been included as a hability in these financal statements nor
as a distribution to equity shareholders.

10. Earnings per share
The calculaton of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2022 7071
£000 £000

Earnings
{Loss} profit for the year attributable to equity holders {500) 153
2022 2021
number rumber
‘000 000

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ardinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 154,556 132,963

Effect of:
Share options 5,968 4,421
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 160,524 137,384
2022 7021
pence pence
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share {0.3) 0
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10. Earnings per share continued
The calculation of adjusted basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Earnings
Loss {profit) for the year attributable to equity holders (500} 153
Amortsation of Intangible assets arising on acquisitions 5,486 3.058
Transaction costs 8,224 6,516
Tax effect of above items {1,059} (581}
Change in deferred tax rate relatung to goodwili and intangible assets 1,990 -
Adjusted earnings 14,141 9176

2022 2021

pence pende
Adjusted basic earnings per share 2.1 6.9
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 8.8 6.7
11. Intangible assets

Intargible
asses
ar sing on
Goadwill Software ACGUISITIONS Total
£000 £1300 £000 £006

Cost
A1 May 2020 50,213 2125 27,661 79,999
Arising on acquisitions 8,745 — 11,328 21,073
Additions — 307 — 307
AU 30 April 20271 as previously reported 59,958 2,432 38,989 101,379
Restatement 250 — — 250
Ar 30 April 2021 as restated 60,208 2,432 38,989 101,629
Arising on acguisitions — — 2,900 2.500
Additions — 183 — 188
At 30 April 2022 60,208 2,620 41,889 104,717
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 May 2020 — 1,775 18,787 20,562
Amortisation during the year — 122 3,058 3,180
AL 30 Aprit 2021 — 1.897 21,845 23,742
Amortisation during the year — 182 5,486 5.668
At 30 April 2022 — 2,079 27,331 29,410
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2022 60,208 541 14,558 75.307
At 30 Aprit 2021 as restated 60,208 535 17,144 77,8387
AL 30 Aprit 2020 50,213 350 8,874 54,437

The carrying value of intangible assets arising on acquisitions comprises brands of £3,695,000 (2021 £3,572,000), customer refatienships
of £7.672,000(2021: £8,556,000), order books of £3,067.000 (2021, £4,862,000) and websites of £124,000 (2021 £154,000). The remaining
usaful economiclives of intangible assets arising on acquisition are between one and nine years.

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisttion, to the CGUs that are expecied to benefit from that business
combination. The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated wholly to the insolvency CGL.

The group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that geodwilt might be impaired

Annuat report and accounts 2022 Beghbies Traynor Group plc 59



Strategic report Corporate governance Financial statements

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

for the year ended 3C April 2022

11. Intangible assets continued

The recoverable amount of the CGU is based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections over a five year pertod with a terminal
value applied, inciuding the latest one year forecast approved by the beard. The one year forecast is prepared based on current market
knowledge, numbers of new engagements and the pipeline of opportunities. The remaining years are based on anticipated growth rates
inregistered companies and the current kquidation rate of active companies.

Key assumptions used in value in use calculation
The key assumpticns far the value in use calculation are those regardmg:

s pre-tax discount rate:
s revenue; and
s operating profit margins.

Pre-tax discount rate

The group's weighted average cost of capital and cost of debt have been used to calculate a group pre-tax discount rate of @ 5% (2021
9.4%j, which reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney for the pericd under review and the risks specific to the
group. As the insclvency CGU comprises the majority of the group's activities this has been used as the discount rate for the purpose of
the value in use calculation.

Revenue

Reveriue assumptions in the one year forecast are based on current market knowledge, numbers of new engagements and the pipeline of
opportunities. Future year revenue levels are based on anticipated growth rates in registered companies and the current Iiguidation rate
of active companies

Insolvency CGU EBITDA margins
Margins in the one year forecast are derived from local partners’ expectations based on the number of current engagements and cost base.
Margins over the extrapolation period are 28%, in line with the currentyear and expectations of future developments.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Wwith regard to the assessment of value in use for the insolvency CGU, the directors believe that reasonably passible changes in any
of the above key assumptions would not cause the carrying value of the unit 1o exceed its recoverable amount.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Financial statements

Leasehold Office Motor
Imorovemeants equipment Computer s vehigles Total

£000 E'0CO L0000 £000 £'000
Cost
ALl May 2020 4,385 1,557 4191 92 10,225
Arising on acquisitions — 20 62 31 13
Additions 21 35 941 — 997
AL 30 April 2021 4,406 1.612 5194 123 11,335
Arising on acquisitions 5 26 38 21 90
Additions 81 23 772 — 876
Disposals — — (2) {55) (57
At 30 April 2022 4,492 1,661 6,002 89 12,244
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 May 2020 3,610 1,477 3,308 30 8,425
Charge for the year 215 49 569 8 841
At 30 Aprit 2027 3,825 1.526 3877 38 9,266
Charge for the year 186 34 763 55 1,038
Disposals — — - {27 (27)
At 30 April 2022 4,011 1,560 4,640 66 10,277
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2022 481 101 1,362 23 1,967
At 30 April 2021 581 86 1,317 85 2,069
At 30 April 2020 775 80 883 62 1,800
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2022

13. Right of use assets

Motor Off ce
Froperty vecles eg.1 pmenrt Tatal
£000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
AL 1 May 2020 12,569 2,843 577 15,989
Arising on acquisitions 1,794 97 — 1,891
Additions 1.058 500 — 1.558
Disposals (1,533) (759) — (2.292)
AL 30 Aprit 2021 13,888 2,681 577 17146
Arising on acguisitions 208 — — 208
Additions 525 164 — 689
Disposals 1573) — — (575}
At 30 April 2022 14,046 2,845 577 17,468
Depreciation and impairment
AL 1 May 2020 6,809 2,014 145 8,968
Charge for the year 1,834 591 192 2,617
impairment 579 — — 579
Reversal of previous impairment (228) — — (228)
Disposals (1.533) {759} — (2,292)
At 30 April 2021 7461 1,846 337 4,644
Charge for the year 1,935 518 192 2,645
Disposals (313) — — (313)
At 30 Aprii 2022 9,083 2,364 529 11,976
Carrying amaunt
At 30 April 2022 4,963 481 48 5,492
AL 30 Aprit 2021 6,427 235 240 7,502
AL 30 Aprif 2020 5,760 829 432 7,021
14. Trade and other receivables
Resrated
2022 2021
£000 £000
Non-current
Deemed remuneration 4175 3,970
Current
Trade receivables 11,567 10,557
Less: impairment provision {2,501) (2,342}
Trade receivables - net 9,066 8,215
Unbilled income 35,208 31,717
Other debtors and prepayments 2,715 2,573
Deemed remuneraticn 2,677 2,351
49,666 44,856

The directors cons:der that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates to therr fair value

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms Refer to note 20 for disclosures on credit risk.
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14. Trade and other receivables continued

Financial statements

The impairment provision comprises a specific loss allowance provision of £2,153,000(2021: £2,035,000} and an expected credit loss
provision of £348,000 (2021, £303,000). The expected loss provision for trade receivables is calculated on the gross carrying amount
of trade recevables less any specific loss allowance, and 1s detailed as follows:

Days past due

<30 days <60 days <90 days <180 days >180 days Total
30 April 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expected loss rate 1% 3% 6% 14% 36% 4%
Gross amount less specific loss provision 6,587 1,574 471 251 531 9,414
Expected credit foss provision 52 43 26 36 191 348
Days past due
<30 davs <B0 days <90 days <180 days =180 days Tozal
3¢ April 2021 £300 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Expecred |oss rate 1% 2% 5% 12% 31% 4%
Gross amount less specific loss provisian 5,793 1134 330 719 396 8372
Expected credit loss provision 48 26 17 28 124 303
Movement in the impairment provision
2022 2071
£'000 £000
Balance at beginning of the year 2,342 1,392
Amounts arising on acquisition — 10
Amounts written off during the year (86) 44)
Amounts recovered during the year (61} (38)
Impairment charge in the year 306 1,022
Balance at end of the year 2,501 2,342
15. Trade and other payables
Restated
2022 2021
£000 £000
Current
Trade payables 1,671 1.387
Accruals 9,733 6,899
Other taxes and social security 4,474 4,385
Deferred income 5,611 5,520
Other creditors 13,950 13,948
Deferred consideration 338 375
Deemed remuneration habilities 1,386 370
37,163 32,884
Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on terms agreed with suppliers.
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their far value.
In addition to the deemed remuneration habilities recognised above of £1,386,000, there are further obligations based on current
forecasts of £17.0m, where the service obligations of selling shareholders have not yet been performed. The maximum potential
payments (f ali performance conditicns are met) would be £30.6m
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2022

16. Lease liahilities

rlotar Office
Proparty wehicles equipmeant Total
L1000 £000 £600 #1000
Cost
AU 1 May 2020 7,089 842 438 8,369
finance charge 430 32 11 443
Additions - new leases 755 498 — 1,253
Arising on acquisitions 1,794 86 — 1,880
Lease payments (2,310 (613) (201} (3.124)
At 30 April 2021 7,728 845 248 8,821
Finance charge 361 19 4 384
Additions - new leases 468 164 — 632
Arising on acquisitions 208 — — 208
Disposals (150) — — {150}
Lease payments (2,807) (542) {201 (3,550}
At 30 April 2022 5,808 486 51 6,345
Current liabilines 1,326 370 51 1747
Non-current habilities 4,482 116 — 4.598
At 30 April 2022 5,808 486 51 6,345

At the balance sheet date, the group had gutstanding commitments for short-term leases as follows'

2022 203
£'000 £000
Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short-term leases 125 87
17. Borrowings
2022 701
£000 £000
Non-current
Unsecured loans at amortised cost 5,000 5,000

The group's principal banking facilities at 30 April 2022 comprise an unsecured, revalving credit facility (RCF) of £25m and an
uncommitted acquisition facility of £5m which were entered into ¢n 1 November 2016, The principal features of these borrowings
are summarised as follows:

RCF of £25m provided by HSBC, of which £5 0m was drawn at 30 April 2022 (2021 £5m). The effective interest rate was 5.1%; together
with uncommitted acquisition facility of £5m provided by HSBC, which was undrawn at 30 April 2022 (2021 undrawn).

The group’s banking facilities mature on 31 August 2024,

All borrowings and cash balances are denorminated in sterling. The directors consider that the carrying amount of the group’s borrowings
approximates to therr fair value.
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18. Provisions

Crneraus

Disposal Dilapidation cantract
prov siens prOvisIoNs provisons Totat
£300 £000 L1000 £0C0
At 1 May 2021 105 3,042 28 3175
Interest expense — 75 — 75
Charged — — 425 425
Addition — 55 — 55
Arising on acquisition — 53 — 53
Disposals — (193) — (193}
Utilised {N (17 — (124)
At 30 April 2022 98 2,915 453 3,466
Current liahilities 98 1112 264 1,474
Non-current liabilities — 1,803 189 1,992
At 30 April 2022 98 2,915 453 3,466

Disposal provisions include liabilities arising from warranty and onerous contract obligations relating to discontinued businesses.

The non-current elements of the provisicns are ali expected to be utilised in the periods up to 30 April 2033,

19. Deferred tax
The following are the deferred tax (labilities) assets recognised by the group and movements therecn during the current and prior year:

Shori-terie

timng
Gootwill Irtarg bles differences Total
£000 2000 £000 £000
At 1 May 2020 (4,782 (1,687) 777 {5,692)
Credit to tncome — 581 208 789
Arising or acquisitions — (2157 1,596 {555)
AL 30 April 2027 as previously reported 4,782) {3,257) 2,581 (5,458)
Restatement — — {70) {70y
At 30 April 2021 as restated {(4,782) (3,257) 2,511 {5,528)
Credit to income — 1.042 {1,041) 1
Arising on acquisitions — 676) (&) (752)
Income statement effect of change in tax rate (1,510) {480) 173 {1,817)
At 30 April 2022 (6,292) (3,371) 1,637 (8,026)

Certain deferred tax assets and habilities have been offset, The following s the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)
for financial reporting purposes:

2022 2021

£000 000
Deferred tax labilities (9,862) (8,209
Deferred tax assets 1,836 2,681
(8,026) {5.528)
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2022

20. Financial instruments

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The group's principal financial instruments comprise cash balances and bank foans. The main purpose of these financial instruments
Is to raise finance for the group's operations. The group alss has various other financial instruments, such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It1s, and Fas been throughout the period under review, the group's pohicy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below

Interest rate risk

The group's external borrowings at the balance sheet date comprise loan facilities. All principal borrowings are on floating interest
rates. The group does not seek to fix interest rates on these barrowings as the board currently considers the exposure to interest
rate risk acceptable.

If interest rates had been 50 basis paints higher and alt other variables were held constant, the group's prof't for the year ended
30 April 2022 and net assets at that date would decrease by £3,000(2021: £13,000) This is attributable 1o the group’s expasure
to movements in interest rate on its variable rate borrowings.

Credit risk
The nature of the group’s debtor balances. the time taken for payment by clients and the associated credit sk are dependent on
the type of engagement

On formal insclvency appointments (which form the majonity of the group's activities}, invoices are generally raised having achieved
approval from creditors to draw fees. This s typically settled on a timely basis from case funds. The credit risk on these engagements
is therefare considered to be extremely low.

On the group's transactional activities, invoices are generally raised on completion of the transaction and typically settled from
completion monies.

On other engagements, the timescale (o receive payment from the date of invoice 1s typically longer as the group’s standard 30 day
payment terms {referred to 1IN note 14) are not practically erforceable in all situations. The board does not believe that this s an indication
of increased credit risk on these engagements

Receivable balances are monitared on an ongoing basis with the result that the group's exposure 1o bad debts s not significant.
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are disclosed in note 14, The group does not believe it1s exposed to any material
concentrations of credit risk.

Unbilled revenue is recognised by the group only when all conditions for revenue recognition have been met in line with the group's
accounting policy In note 2(k}.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficulty in meeting 1ts obligations associated with its financral liabilities. The group's
ability to generate cash from formal insolvency appontments is usually reliant on asset realisations. A deterioration in realisations in the

short tarm could reduce the group’s operating cash generation and increase its financing requirements. The group monitors its risks to
a shortage of funds through regular cash rmanagement and forecasting and ensuring suitable headroom within its banking facilities.

The growp's objective is to mamtain a balance between continuity of funding and flextbility through the use of its committed bank facilities,
and giving consideration to other available sources of finance such as bank overdrafts, finance leases and hire purchase contracts.

There is no material risk asscciated with foreign currency transactions or overseas subsidiaries.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the group’s financial liabilivies at 30 Aprii based on contractual payments,

At 30 April 2022 AL 30 April 2027

Within Between After Wirain JFetween After
1year 2-5 years Syears Total T year 2=y yedrs 5yedrs Tatal
£000 £000 £000 £000 £1O00 £000 £:000 £'000
Bank borrowings 153 5,203 —_ 5,356 133 5.176 — 5,309
Trade and other payables 37163 — — 37163 32,884 — — 32,884
Lease habilites 3,384 4,535 737 8,656 3,438 6,652 1,287 11,377
40,700 9,738 737 51,175 36,455 11,828 1,287 49,570
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20. Financial instruments continued
Capital management

Financial statements

The primary objective of the group’s capital management is to support 1ts business and maximise sharehcider value The group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in ight of changes in economic conditions and business requirements. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the group may raise additional or pay down debt finance, adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,

return cagital to sharehelders orissue new shares,

The table below presents guantitative data for the components the group manages as capital

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Shareholders’ funds 84,525 86,250
Bank borrowings 5,000 5,000
At 30 April 89,525 91,250
Categories of financial instruments
The table below shows the classification of the group's financal instruments.
2022 2021
£000 £000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables 9,066 8,215
Cash at bank 9,685 7,986
18,751 16,201
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables {37,163} (32,384
Bank borrowings {5,000} (5,000
(42,163} (37,884
21. Share capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
thousand triousand £000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5p
At 1 May 150,908 127,701 7,547 6,386
Issue of shares for share-based payments 1,460 286 72 15
Shares issued as consideration for acguisitions 1,034 1,803 52 95
Shares 1ssued as deferred considaration - 165 — 3
Placing shares issued - 20,853 — 1,043
At 30 April 153,402 150,908 7,671 7547

QOrdinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right to one vote at general meetings of the company

22. Share-based payments

The group operated three equity-settled share-based payment arrangements in the year: a market value share option scheme and 3
performance share plan (PSP for senior management, and an HMRC approved save as you earn {'SAYE') scheme for qualifying employees

The group recognised an expense relating to eguity-settled share-based payment transactions of £1,574,000 {2021, £1,031,000), of which
££3,000{2021: £74,000) relates to the market value share option scheme, £1,455,000 {2021 £908,000) relates to the PSP and £76,000

(2021 £49,000) relates to the SAYE schemes,

The greup also operated a cash-settled share-based payment arrangement in the year. The group recognised an expense of £825,000
(20217, £573,000) in relation to the cash-settled shara-based payment arrangement.
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Notes to the consolidated

financial statements continued

for the year ended 30 April 2022

22. Share-based payments continued

Details of movements in share options during the current and prior year are as follows,

2022 2021
Number weighted Numher Weaighted
of share average of snare average
options  exercise price aplions EX3rCISA prICe
thousand pence tha.sand perce
Qutstanding at 1 May 11,916 40 6,461 62
Granted during the period 182 5 6,156 20
Fxercised during the period (1.782) 56 (701 62
Outstanding at 30 April 10,316 37 11,816 40
Exercisable at 30 Aprif 2,478 51 3,126 51
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exercised in the year was 118p.
The table below shows details in relation to options cutstanding at the period end
2022 2021
Number Number
of share Contractual of share Contractual
Exarcse price options  life remaining acticns life remainirg
Schame pence thousand years tnousand years
Share option schemne 2013 37 1,103 1.5 1,303 25
Share optien scheme 2014 51 —_ — 250 32
Share option scheme 2017 63 1,095 5.5 1,574 65
SAYE scheme 2018 59 280 041 1.134 10
Share option scheme 2019 88 1,500 7.5 1,500 85
PSP 2020 5 4,275 8.2 4,275 92
SAYE scheme 2020 72 1,356 2.2 1,356 3.2
PSP 2021 {iIssued Jan 21) 5 525 8.7 528 Q7
PSP 2021 (issued Sep 27} 5 182 9.4 — —

The fair value of the PSP granted in the year was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

Psp
Grant date Sep 2021
Share price at grant date (p} 133
Exercise price {p) 5
Vesting period {years) 3
Time to expiry (years) 94
Expected volatility (%) 31
Risk free rate (%) 06
Expected dividend yield (%) 2.6
Fair value per option (p) 120

The expected volatility has been determined based on historical volatility of the group's share price in line with the vesting period of the
opuon The risk free rate is based on UK treasury issued bonds of a term consistent with the option life The fair value 1s spread over the

vesting period of the aptions.
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23. Acquisitions

MAF Finance Group
On 10 May 2021 the group acquired the entire 1ssued share caprtal of MAF Property Limited, trading as MAF Finance Group,
a Midlands-based finance broker.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and habilities assumed are set out below:

Accounting palicy Fair value
Book value algnments adjasimerts Fat't valae
£000 L1000 £000 £000)
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — — 1,915 1,915
Property, plant and equipment 56 e — 56
Right of use assets — 208 — 208
Trade and other receivables 283 e — 283
Cash and cash eguivalents 220 — — 220
Trade and other payables (462} — — (462)
Corporation tax (43} — — 43)
Provisions — (48} — (48)
Lease liabilities — (208} — (208)
Deferred tax {5 — {453} 14583
Total identifiable assets 49 (43} 1,462 1,463
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3 —
Gain on acquisition 1463
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration:
Cash consideration 2,000
Equity instruments {ssued 1,000
Provisional cash free debt free adjustment 94
Earn out 8,750
11,844
Deemed remuneration payments arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 2,094
Less. cash and cash equivalents acquired {220)
1,874

Fair value adjustments of £1,915,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 11,

As detalled above, the consideration payable for this acquisition requires post-acguisition service cbligations to be performed by
the selling shareholders over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration (see note 2(c)).

Acqguisition costs of £169,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction Cost.

The acquisition centributed £4,100,000 of revenue and £600.000 to the group’s operating profit {befare amortisation and transaction
costs) for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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23. Acquisitions continued
Daniells Harrison

0On 7 January 2022 the group acquired the entire legal and beneficial interest of the members of Daniells Harrison Surveyors LLF, a

property consultancy based on the South coast of England.

The provisional amounis recogrised in respect of the idenufiable assets acquired and labilities assumed are set out below:

Fa'r value
Bovk velue ad Lslnents Fair value
£000 £000 £000
Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 649 649
Investments 6 {5 —
Property, plant and equipment 34 — 34
Trade and other receivables 338 — 338
Cash and cash eguivalents 177 — 177
Trade and other payables {162 — {162}
Provisions (5] — (5
Borrowings (388) — {388)
Deferred tax — (14M {147}
Total identifiable assets — 502 502
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3 —
Gain on acquisition 502
Consideration accounted for as deemed remuneration:
Cash consideration 750
Equity Instruments issued 250
Provisional cash free debt free adjustment 221
Centingent censideration 1,000
Earn out 1,250
3,471
Deemed remuneration payments arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 971
Less: cash and cash eguivalents acquired {177}
794

Fair value adjustments of £649,000 relating to the separate recognition of intangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible

assets recorded can be found in note 11

As detailed above, elements of the consideration payable for this acquisition require post-acquisition service obligatiens to be performed

by the selling shareholders over a five year period. These amounts are accounted for as deemed remuneration (see nate 2(c}).

Acqguisition costs of £30,000 have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income as a transaction ¢ost,

The acquisition contributed £900,000 of revenue and £200,000 to the group's operating profit (before amorusation and transaction

costs) for the period between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.
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23. Acquisitions continued

Fernie Greaves
During the year the group acquired a team and portfolic of cases. The amounts recogrised in respect of the idenufiable assets acquired
and habilities assumed are set out betow

Farr value
Boo« value adjustrrents Far value
£300 £000 £000

Net assets acquired
Intangible assets — 336 336
Ceferred tax — (77) (77
Total identifiable assets — 259 259
Satisfied by:
Consideration under IFRS 3:
Cash paid 250
Gain on acquisition 9
Cash outflows arising on acquisition
Cash paid 250

Fair value adjustments of £ 336,000 refating to the separate recognition of ntangible assets have been recorded. Details of intangible
assets recorded can be found in note 11

2022 2021
£000 £000
Investing acquisition payments
Cash consideration under IFRS 3 250 11,030
Settlement of pre-acquisition borrowings - 11,003
Cash outflows on acquisition of businesses 250 22,033
Deferred consideration payments 36 150
286 22,183
Deemed remuneration payments
Imtial payments 3,065 363
Deferred consideration payments 5,205 2,832
8,270 3,195
Net cash and cash equivalents acquired (397) (1.522)
Total cash flows arising from acquisitions 8,159 23,856

If the acquisitions had been completed on the first day of the financial year, the group revenues for the period would have been £111.5m
and group profit before tax would have been £4.3m.

The amounts recogrused above are provisional estimates,
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements continued

far the year ended 30 April 2022

24. Reconciliation to the cash flow statement

2022 2021

£000 £'000
(Loss) profit for the year (500} 153
Adiustments for:
Tax 4,549 1.754
Finance rosts 835 883
Amortisation of intangible assets 5,668 3180
Depreciation of property, plant and egquipment 1,038 a4
Depreciation of ight of use assets 2,645 2617
Impairment of right of use asset — 579
Reversal of impairment of right of use asset —_ (228)
Gain on acquisition {1,974) (231
Profit on disposal of fixed assets (10) -
Profit on disposal of ROU assets (81) —
Share-based payment expense 1,574 1,031
Deemed remuneration obligations settled through equrty 1,250 150
(Increase) decrease in desmed remuneration receivable {531) 2,759
Increase in deemed remuneration liabilities 1,016 236
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 15,479 13,724
Increase in receivables {excluding deemed remuneration} {3,916) (2,683}
Increase in payables (excluding deemed remuneration liabilities) 2,296 5,400
Increase (decrease} in provisions 376 (279}
Cash generated by operations 14,235 16,162

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and

other short-term highly hquid investmeants with a maturity of three months or less.

25. Reconciliation of movement in net cash

Non-current

borrowngs Net cash

£000 £000

At 1 May 2021 (5,000) 2,986
Cash flows — 1,302
Net cash and cash equivalents acquired (note 23) — 367
At 30 April 2022 (5,000) 4,685

26. Cantingent liabilities

As disclosad in note 15, the group has contingent consideration payable in respect of acquisitions.

The group had no other material contingent liabilities at 30 April 2022 or 30 April 2021.

27. Pensions
The group operates defined contribution pension schemes for all qualifying employees

The total cost charged to income of £3.113,000 (2021: £2,233,000) represents contributions payable to these schemes by the group.
As at 30 April 2022, contributions of £294 000 (2021: £269,000) 1n respect of the current year, which were not yet due for payment,

had not been paid over to the schemes.
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28. Related party transactions
Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are
not disclosed in this note,

Trading transactions
During the year the following transactions, all of which were on arm'’s length terms and i1 the ordinary course of business, occurred
inwhich directors have an interest:

A commerclal property used by members af the group during the year is part owned by Mark Fry. Rent and service charges paid on this
property by entities within the group in the year totalled £95,000 (2021 £95,000) Az 30 April 2022 £nil (2021, £nil) was payable in respect
of this transaction. In the prior year Mark Fry had an interest in a company which pravided archiving faciiities to entities within the group.
£ril (2021; £24,000) was paid by entities within the group for this service during the year. At 30 April 2022 £nil {2021, £6,000) was payable
in respect of this service.

Ric Traynor purchased the controlling interest in Red Flag Alert LLP {'Red Flag’} from the group on 10 April 2012, with the group retaining

a minority interest in the partnerstip, The group continues to provide a number of central support services to Red Flag for which £90,000
was payable by Red Flag during the year (2021. £96,000). The group has negotiated an agreement to retain full access to the database and
joint marketing rights for the publication of Red Flag quarterly statistics and was charged a fee of £150,000 for the year (2021: £150,000} In
additicn, there were incidental services provided by Red Flag during the year totalling £6,000 {2021, £4,000) At 30 April 2022 £10,000 was
payable in respect of these transactions (2021: £13,000 was owed by Red Flag).

Begbies Traynor (London) LLP option

There was a put and call option in place for the group to acquire Mark Fry's interest in Beghies Traynor {London) LLP during a three month
period after 30 September 2019, for £4m (determined as an agreed multiple of average profit over the three year period ended 30 April 2013).
The option was settled during 2020

The liability to the group under this option is accounted for in accordance with the group's policy for business combnations {note 2¢) and
charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements. The charge in the
current financial year was £nil (2021 £0.9m}. At 30 April 2022 there was £mil (2021: £nil) recognised within current deemed remuneration

Key management personnel
The remuneration of the directars, who are the key management personnel of the group, 15 set out in the remuneration committee report
on page 31

29. Reserves
The following describes the nature and purpose of each reserve within cwners’ equity:

Share premium Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value

Merger reserve Formation of the group i 2004, and premium for shares issued on acquisitions in accordance with
Companies ACt reguirements.

Capital redemption reserve Repurchase of own share capital.

Retained earnings Cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consaolidated statement of comprehensive income.

30. Post-balance sheet events

0On 24 June 2022 the group acquired the entire issued share capital of Budworth Hardcastle Limeted, a firm of chartered surveyors
operating in the South of England. The acquisition 15 1n line with strategy to increase the scale, quality and range of the group's services
both crganically and through value-accretive acquisitions. The acquisition 1s for an initial consideration of £0.9m: £0.6m cash from the
group’s existing facilities and the issue of 206,937 new ordmary shares Under the terms of the acquisition, there is deferred consideration
of up to £0 9m dependent on the financial performance over the three years from completion. The company had net assets of £0.4m
(including £0.3m cash) as at 21 August 2027, Further details on the fair value of assets and ligbilities acquired has not been included as

it was not avallable at the date of signing these accounts.
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Company balance sheet

at 30 April 2022

2022 0
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiarias 4 63,324 37,932
63,324 37832
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 5 46,023 61,379
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade and other payables 6 (1,038) (39)
Net current assets 44,985 &1,340
Total assets less current liabilities 108,309 99,272
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Trade and other payables 6 {10,279) —
Net assets 98,030 99,272
Capital and reserves
Calted-up share capita! 7 7,671 7547
Share premium account 29,787 29,325
Merger reserve 27,172 25974
Capital redempuion reserve 304 304
Profit and loss account 33,096 36,122
Shareholders’ funds 98,030 39,272

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has elected not to present its own profit and loss account for
the year Begbies Traynor Group plc reported a loss for the financial year ended 30 April 2022 of £17,000 (2021: profit of £873,000).

The financial staternents of Begbies Traynor Group plc, registered number 5120043, were approved by the beoard of directors

and authorised for issue on 18 July 2022. They were signed on 1ts behalf by:

Ric Traynor Nick Taylor

Executive chairman Group finance director
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 April 2022

Share Share Klerger iedev;w‘:)?:g? Retained lotal
CB;J\[E)' premium eserve reser o odar 'TH”gS equ\ty
£000 £000 £000 £300 £400 £000
At 1 May 2020 6,386 29,459 23,927 304 17,791 77,867
Profit for the year — o — — 879 879
Dwidends — — - — (3.579) {3.579)
Transfer from share premium account — {20,000) — — 20,000 —
Credit to equity for equity-ssttled
share-based payments — — — — 1,031 1,031
Shares issued as cansideration
for acquisitions 95 — 1.905 — — 2.000
Shares issued as deferred consideration 8 — 142 — — 150
Placing shares issued 1,043 19,852 — — — 20,895
Shares issued for share-based payments 15 14 — — (13} 16
At 30 April 2021 7,547 29,325 25974 3C4 36122 89272
Loss for the year — — — — 7 (17)
Dividends — — — — {4.553) {4,553)
Credit to equity for equnty-settled
share-based payments — — — — 1,544 1,544
Shares issued as consideration
for acgquisitions 52 — 1,198 — — 1,250
Shares issued for share-based payments 72 462 — — — 534
At 30 April 2022 7,671 29,787 27,172 304 33,096 98,030
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Notes to the company financial statements

for the year ended 30 April 2022

1. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of Begbies Traynor Group plc have been prepared urder the historical cost convention and in accordance with
United Kingdom Accounting Standards, inciuding Financial Reporting Standard 102, and the Companies Act 2006,

The funcuonal currency of the group is considered to be pounds sterling because this 1s the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the company operates.

The principal accounting polidies are sunundrised below. They have aill been applied consistently throughout the year and the
preceding year.

Investments
Fixed asset investments i subsidiaries are shown at cost less provision for impairment. The carrying value of fixed asset investments are
reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable,

Share-based payments

The fair value of services received in excharge for the grant of options is recognised as an expense over the vesting period in accordance
with FRS 102, Options are valued using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Further details are provided in note 22 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of uncertainty

In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, the company is required to make certain estimates, judgements and
assumptions that it believes are reasonable based upon the information available. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilites at the date of the finangial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
periods presented

On an ongoing basis, the company evaluates its esumates using historical experience, consultation with experts and other methods

considered reasonable in the particular crcumstances. Actual results may differ from the estimates, the effect of which 1s recognised in
the periad in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known,

The directors do not consider there to be any critical accounting judgements or key sources of uncertainty

FRS 102 exemption

Begbies Traynor Group plc meets the definition of & qualifying entity under FRS 102 and has therefore taken advantage of the disclosure
exernptions avallable to it in respect of its separate financial statements, Exemptions have been taken in these separate company
financial staternents in relation to share-based payments, presentation of a cash flow statement and remuneration of key management
personnel,

The company's shareholders have bean notified in writing about the intention to take advantage of the disclosure exemptions and no
objections have been received

The company also intends to take advantage of these exemptions in the financial statements to be issued in the following year
Cbjections may be served on the company by its shareholders

2. Auditor's remuneration
The auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial statements

3. Staff costs
The company has six employees {2021, six employees).
2022 2021
£000 £'000
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Salaries 806 728
Social security costs 97 105
Pension costs 12 12
915 845
4. Investment in subsidiaries
FOO0
Cost and net book value
At 1 May 2020 and 30 April 2021 37,932
Additions 25,392
At 30 April 2022 63,324

Detalls of subsidiary enuties are set out below These undertakings are included in the consclidated group financial statements and are

100% controlled Companies are listed under their registered office.

Subsidiary undertaking

Nature pf business

Country of incorporation

340 Deansgate, Manchester M3 4LY
Begbies Traynor Limited'

BTG Consulung Limited'

Beghies Traynor International Limited
Beghies Traynor (Central} LLP
Begbies Traynor (London) LLP
Beghies Traynor (SY) LLP
Springboard Corporate Finance LLP
BTG Corporate Finance LLP

BTG Advisory LLP

BTG Global Advisory Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

Midlands Asset Finance Limited

MAF Property Limited

Asset Finance Compared Limited

David Rubin & Partners Limited’

Begbies Traynor (Guernsey) Limited {formerly David Rubin & Partners (C.1) Limited)
CVR Global LLP

Beghies Traynor {Jersey) Limited {formerly CVR Global Offshore Limited)
Begbies Traynor (Gibraltar) Limited (formerly CVR Global {Rock) Limited)
Begbies Trayror (BV.I} Lirmited (formerly CVR Global B V.| Limited)

CVR Global {Cyprus) Limited

Begbies Traynor (Iste of Man) Limited

Cv Business Rescue Limited

Business Credif Management (UK} Limited

insolvency Advice Limited’

Begbies Traynor Legal Services LLP

BTG Tax LLP

Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Business recavery
Business recovery
Business recovery
Corporate finance
Corporate finance
Financial consulting

International netwaork
arganisation

Business recovery
Finance broking
Dormant
Dormant
Business recovery

England and Wates
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
Engiand and Wales
England and Wates
England and Wales

England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales
England and Wales

Business recovery Guernsey

Business recovery England and Wales
Bus:ness recovery Jersey

Business recovery Gibraltar

Business recovery Brntish Virgin Isiands
Business recovery Cyprus

Business recovery Isle of Man

Dormant

England and Wales

Dormant England and Wales
Dormant England and Wales
Dormant England and Wales
Dormant England and Wales
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Notes to the company financial statements
continued

for the year ended 30 Aprit 2022

4. Investment in subsidiaries continued

Subs ciary urdertak ng Nature of business Country of ncorparat on
Toronto Square, Toronto Street, Leeds L$1 2H)

Eddisons Commercal (Holdings) Limited” Property consultancy England and Wales
Eddisons Commeraial Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Eddisons Commeroal (Property Martagement) Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Eddisons Insurance Services Limited Insurance brokerage Crigla:sd and Wales
Eddisons Heldings Limited Dormant England and Wales
Ernest Wilsons & Co Limited Property consultancy England and Wales
Ernest Wilson's (West Yorkshire) Limited Dormant England and Wales
Hargraaves Newberry Gyngell Limiteq Property consultancy England and Wales
MMX] Limited Property consuitancy England and Wales
BSMH Limited Property consuftancy England and Wales
BSMSR Limited Dormant England and Wales
The Londen Silver Yauits and Chancery Lane Safe Deposit Company Limited Management company  England and Wales
Pugh & Company Limited Auctioneers England and Wales
Daniells Harrison Surveyors LLP Property consultancy England and Wales
Theauctionpeople.co Limited Dormant England and Wales

1 Imierests controlled by suhsidiary srdertadings, except where mar<ed wiere shares are held awectly by Begbizs Traynor Group plc
All shareholdings relate 1o ordinary shares,

The directors of the company are of the apinion that the value of the investments in subsidiaries, as underpinned by their membership
benefits in the operating entities of the group, is not less than the cost of those investments.

The following subsidiary undertakings have claimed exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006

Subsid’ary urder tak ng

BTG Global Advisory Limited

BTG Corporate Solutions Limited

BTG Corperate Finance LLP

Springboard Corporate finance LLP

MAF Property Lirnited

Midlands Asset Finance Limited

Ernest Wilsons & Co Limited

Pugh & Company Limited

Eddisons Holdings Limited

Hargreaves Newberry Gyngelt Limited

David Rubin & Partners Limited

Begbies Traynor (Jarsey) Limited (formerly CVR Glaba! Offshore Limited)
Begbies Traynor (Guarnsey) Limited {formerly David Rubin & Partners (C 1) Limited)
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5. Trade and other receivables

Financiaf statements

2022 2021
£000 #2000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by group undertakings 45,991 61,340
Other debtors 32 39
46,023 61,379
6. Trade and other payables
2022 2021
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Gther creditors 1,038 39
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Other creditors 10,279 —

The company has no financial instruments other than those shown as financiat habilties above, all of which are denorminated in sterling.
The directors consider the farr values of the financial instruments approximate to their book values and that the main risk to the company
arising from financial instruments 1s interest rate nsk, which is kept under review.

7. Share capital

2022 2021 2022 2021
thousand thousand £'000 £000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 5p
At 1 May 150,908 127,701 7,547 6,386
Issue of shares for share-based payments 1,460 286 72 15
Shares issued as consideration for acquisitions 1,034 1,803 52 95
Shares issued as deferred consideration —_ 165 —_ 8
Share placing — 20,853 — 1,043
At 30 April 153,402 150,908 7,671 7547
Qrdinary shares carry no right to fixed income and each share carries the right tc one vote at general meetings of the company.
The company has 1ssued share options as set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements
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